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Annual Management Report

1. General information. Ownership and corporate governance

The Company's principal scope of business activity is the management and leasing of real estate, as
well as the provision of other real property-related services. The Company is registered with the
Commercial Register under UIC 205788473,

The Company was incorporated as a joint stock company in 2019 as a result of a plan approved by the
Board of Directors of House Market Bulgaria EAD for reorganisation, which involved the separation of
its own real estate and the corresponding bank liabilities into the newly incorporated Company. In 2021,

the Company Trade Estates Joint Stock Company for Investments in Real Estate S.A., Greece, was
incorporated, which acquired the share capital and, respectively, became the sole owner of Trade
Estates Bulgaria EAD.

The head office and registered address of the Company is 216 Okolovrasten Pat Str., Sofia City,
Bulgaria.

The ultimate controlling entity is Fourlis Holding S.A., Greece, which owns 100% of the shares of Trade
Estates Joint Stock Company for Investments in Real Estate S.A. The shares of Fourlis Holding S.A
are listed on the Athens Stock Exchange.

The Company has a one-tier governance system consisting of a Board of Directors with members
Dimitrios Papoulis, Andreas Skyrlas, and Stavroula Moundanou, The manner of representation is either
jointly by the two Executive Directors, Dimitrios Papoulis and Andreas Skyrlas, or by two of the
procurators (authorised signatories), Milena Dimanova, Nicolaos Sfyroeras, and Nicolaos Yfantidis.

The Company does not perform research and development activities.

The Company does nol hold treasury shares and, respectively, carried out no transactions with such
shares.

In 2024, the members of the Board of Directors of the Company neither acquired, nor held or transferred
shares of the Company. or had rights to acquire shares of the Company.

In 2024, the key management staff was not paid remuneration
Contracts under Article 240b of the Commercial Act was not concluded during the year

The procurators (authorised signatories) do not participate in the management or ownership of other
companies

The participation of the members of the Board of Directors as a general partner holding more than 25
per cent of the capital of other entities is as follows:

Dimitrios Papoulis:
- Emos Partners EOOD, Sofia, Bulgaria.
Andreas Skyrlas:

- Andreas Skyrlas & Sia Omorrythmi Etaireia, Palaio Faliro, Greece,
- Business Skills ke, Athens, Greece.

The participation of the members of the Board of Directors in the corporate governance of other
companies or cooperatives as procurators (authorised signatories), managing directors or Board
members as of 31 December 2024, is as follows:

Dimitrios Papoulis:
- Trade Estates REIC, Attica, Greece — Executive Director and member of the Board of Directors;
Stavroula Moundanou;

- Ktimatodomi Techniki Touristiki Nautiliaki Georgiki Kai Emporiki Monoprosopl Anonymh
Etaireia, Attica, Greece — member of the Board of Directors;
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- Volyrenco Anaptixi Kai Ekmetalefsi Akiniton Monoprosopi Anonimi Eteria, Attica, Greece —
member of the Board of Directors,

- Mantenko Anaptixi Kai Ekmetalefsi Akiniton Monoprosopi Anomimi Eteria, Attica, Greece —
member of the Board of Directors,

- Rets Kataskevastiki Anonymi Etaireia, Knpucun, Greece — member of the Board of Directors;

- Polikenco Anaptyxi Kai Ekmetallefsi Akiniton Monoprosopi Anonymi Etaireia, Attica, Greece -
member of the Board of Directors.

Andreas Skyrlas:

- Andreas Skyrlas & Sia Omorrythmi Etaireia. Palaio Faliro, Greece — Managing Director;
Trade Estates Cyprus Limited, Lefkosia, Cyprus — Managing Director,

- H.M. Estates Cyprus Limited, Lefkosia, Cyprus — Managing Director;

~ Ktimatodomi Techniki Touristiki Nautiliaki Georgiki Kai Emporiki Monoprosopi Anonymh
Etaireia, Attica, Greece — Executive Director and Chairman of the Board of Directors;

—  Volyrenco Anaptixi Kai Ekmetalefsi Akiniton Monoprosopi Anonimi Eteria, Attica, Greece —
Executive Director and Chairman of the Board of Directors;

- Mantenko Anaptixi Kai Ekmetalefsi Akiniton Monoprosopi Anonimi Eteria, Attica, Greece -
Executive Director and Chairman of the Board of Directors;

—-  Gyalou Monoprosopi Anonymi Etairia Emporikon, Touristikon Drastiriotiton Kai Ekmetalleusis
Akiniton, Attica, Greece — Chairman of the Board of Directors;

- Rets Kataskevastiki Anonymi Etaireia, Kuducus, Greece — Chairman of the Board of Directors;

- Evitenco Anaptyxi Kai Ekmetalleusi Akiniton S A. , Athens, Greece - member of the Board of
Directors.

The procurators (authorised signatories) do not participate in the management or ownership of other
companies.

Contracts under Article 240b of the Commercial Act was not concluded during the year.

2. Main risks faced by the Company. Financial instruments used by the Company. Risk
management objectives and policies

The Company is exposed to various risks associated with financial instruments. The most significant
financial risks to which the Company is exposed are market risk. credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company's risk management is carried out by management, whaose priority is to ensure short to
medium-term cash flows by minimising exposure to financial markets.

The Company did not use derivative financial instruments in its operations in 2024. The main financial
instruments include trade and other receivables, payables on loans, trade and other payables.

In 2024, the Company experienced the immediate effects of operational risks in its business operations,
becoming the target of a hacking attack in late November 2024 that resulted in a material disruption to
the Company's IT systems and overall operations. Thanks to the active efforts of professionals engaged
in the field, their normal functioning was restored in February 2025, with ongoing activities aimed at
increasing the levels of protection and securing processes more reliably.

More information on the most significant financial risks to which the Company is exposed is disclosed
in Note 21 to the financial statements.

3. Financial performance, operating results, ecology and personnel

In 2024, the Company reported a decline in operating profit of BGN 1,767 thousand (18.2%) primarily
due to a decrease in the profit from a change in the fair value of investment property, which was lower
by BGN 2,115 thousand compared to 2023, Rental income grew by 5%, corresponding to the annual
indexation of the Minimum guaranteed rent’, with operating expenses remaining at their prior year's
level

Finance costs declined by BGN 153 thousand or 8.5% due to the renegotiated interest rate with the
sole owner, Trade Estates Joint Stock Company for Investments in Real Estate S A , Greece, as well
as the reduction of the loan principal through payments made under the agreed-upon repayment
schedule.
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More information on the Company's income, expenses, and balance sheet items for the current and
comparable periods is disclosed in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024,

As of the date of preparation of the financial statements, management has assessed the Company's
ability to continue operating as a going concern in the foreseeable future based on the available
information. After the studies undertaken, the Board has a reasonable expectation that the Company
has sufficient resources to continue operating in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Company
continues to apply the going concern concept in preparing the annual financial statements.

The Company had no personnel hired under employment contracts as of 31 December 2024

The activity of Trade Estates Bulgarna EAD is not manufacturing, and therefore, it has no direct impact
on the environment or pollution.

The Company does not use intangible assets in its operations.
4. Future development

The Company will continue its activities in the future under the terms of the lease agreement with House
Market Bulgaria EAD. The rental income for the next period is expected to increase in line with the
agreed indexation of the "Minimum Guaranteed Rent". Management does not expect a decline in real
estate prices in the region that would negatively affect the fair value of the investment property and,
accordingly, negatively impact the financial result.

No transactions of material significance to The Company’s operations are anticipated beyond those
potentially concerning its future development.

5. Events after the end of the reporting period

No adjusling or significant non-adjusting events have occurred between the date of the financial
statements and the date of its authorisation for issue, except the following non-adjusting event:

Following a hacking attack on the IT systems of Fourlis Group at the end of 2024, the process of
restoring the Group's systems, including those of the Company, commenced actively in January 2025
and continued until February 2025. Ongoing activities are carmed out to enhance the levels of protection
and secure processes more reliably.

15 April 2025

Sofia city

[signature, ilegible] [signature, Wegible]
Nicolaos Yfantidis Milena Dimanova

Procurator Procurator




Trade Estates Bulgaria EAD 1
Financial statements
31 December 2024

Statement of Financial Position

Assels Mote 31 December 31 December
2024 2023
BGN'000 BGN'000
Non-current assets
Investment property 5 83 079 92180
Non-current assets 93 079 92 190
Current assets
Prepayments and other assets 1 3
Cash and cash equivalents 7 1859 3517
Current asseis 1 B60 3 522
Total assets 94 939 95 712

Equity and liabilities

Equity
Share capital 81 52 758 52 758
Other reserves B.2 (1918) (1918)
Retained earnings 11 373 8 680
Total equity 62 212 60 519
Liabilities
Mon-current liabilities
MNon-current loans from related parties ] 24 291 25371
Deferred tax liabilities 51 2071 1712
Non-current liabilities 26 362 27 083
Current liabilities
Short-term loans from related parties 9 1534 916
Current payables to related parties 17 4 694 7051
Trade and other payables 10 137 128
Income tax liabilities - 15
Current liabilities 6 365 B 110
Total liabilities 32727 35193
Total equity and liabilities 94 939 95712
Prepared by [signature, illegible] Procurator: [signature, illegible]
/Desislava Hristova/ Milena Dimanova/
Date: 15 April 2025
Procurator[signature, illegible]
/MNicolacs Yfantidis/
Certified by an auditor's report issued on 27 May 2025
Grant Thomton Ltd, Audit Firm, Reg. No. 032
Mariy Apostolov [signature, illegible] Ivan Gidiyski [signalure, illegible]
Managing Director Regislered auditor responsible for the audit

The noles to the financial statements on pages 1 10 26 are an mtegral part of the financial statements :
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Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income

Note 2024 2023
BGN'000 BGN'000
Rental income g 7282 6945
Other income 11 387 387
Operating expenses 12 (624) (625)
Changes in the fair value of investment property 5 B89 3004
Operating profit 7944 9711
Finance costs 13 (1 645) (1798)
Profit before tax 6299 7913
Income tax expense 14 (693) {822)
Profit for the year 5 606 7 081
Total comprehensive income for the year 5 606 7 091
Prepared by: [signature, illegible] Procurator: [signature, ilegible]
/Desislava Hristova/ Milena Dimanova/

Date: 15 April 2025

Procurator[signature, illegible]
/Mlicolaos Yfantidis/

Certified by an auditor's report issued on 27 May 2025
Grant Thornton Ltd, Audit Firm, Reg. No. 032

Mariy Apostolov [signature, illegible] Ivan Gidiyski [signature, legible]
Managing Director Registered auditor responsible for the audit
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Statement of Changes in Equity

Al amounts are stated in thousands Share Issue Retained Total equity
of Bulganan leva (BGN'000) capital premium earnings
Balance as of 1 January 2024 52758 (1919) 9 680 60 519
Dividends - - (3913) (3 913)
Owner's transactions - - (3913) (3913)
Profit for the year - - 5 606 5 606
Total comprehensive income for
the year - - 5 606 5 606
Balance as of 31 December 2024 52758 {1919) 11373 62 212
All amounts are stated in thousands Share Issue Retained Total equity
of Bulgarian leva (BGN'000) capital premium earnings
Balance as of 1 January 2023 52 758 (1 919) 9 630 60 469
Dividends - - (7 041) (7 041)
Owner's transactions - - (7 041) (7 041)
Profit for the year - - 7081 7091
Total comprehensive income for
the year . . 7091 7091
Balance as of 31 December 2023 52 758 (1919) 9 680 60 519
Prepared by: [signalure, illegible] Procurator: [signature, illegible]

/Desislava Hnistova/ /Milena Dimanova/

Date: 15 April 2025

Procuratorfsignature, iffegible]
/Nicolaos Yfantidis/

Certified by an auditor’s report issued on 27 May 2025
Grant Thornton Lid, Audit Firm, Reg. No. 032

Mariy Apostolov [signature, illegible] Ivan Gidiyski [signature, illegible]
Managing Director Registered auditor responsible for the audit

The notes to the financial staterments on pages 1 1o 26 are an integral pan of the financial statements
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Statement of Cash Flows

Note 2024 2023
BEGN'000 BGN'000
Operating activity
Profit before taxes 6298 7913
Adjustments 756  (1206)
Change in the fair value of investment property {889} (3 004)
Interest expenses 1 645 1798
Net changes in working capital 2 (640)
Change in trade and other receivables 4 -
Change in trade and other payables (2) (640)
Net changes in working capilal {360) (166}
Net cash flow from operating activity 6 697 5901
Financing activity
Payments on loans 17 (810) (810)
Interest paid 17 (1279) (2 070)
Dividends paid B.3 (6 259) (8 801)
Payment of other finance costs (7} (11)
Net cash flow from financing activity (8355) (11692)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (1658) (5791)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3517 9308
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 7 1859 3517
Prepared by: [signattre, illegible] Procurator: [signature, illegible]
/Desislava Hristova/ /Milena Dimanova/

Date: 15 Apnil 2025

Procuratorfsignalure, illegible]
Micolaos Yfantidis/

Certified by an auditor’'s report issued on 27 May 2025
Grant Thornton Ltd, Audit Firm, Reg. No. 032

Mariy Apostolov [signature, illegible] Ilvan Gidiyski [signature, illegible]
Managing Director Reaqistered auditor responsible for the audit

The notes 1o the financial statements on pages | to 26 are an integral pan of the financial ﬂ% ? ”
el
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Grant Thornton Lid.

address. 26, Chermi Virah, 1421 Sofia
address: 111, Knyaz Bosns | Bled |, 2000 Vama
el (+3502) BET 28 79, (+358567) B9 55 44
faoc [+#3502) 060 48 24, (+#35352) 60 55 1)

emad officed@bg gl.com
websile: www granithormion. bg

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the sole owner of

Trade Estates Bulgaria EAD
216, Okolovrasten Pat Street
Sofia city

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Trade Estates Bulgaria EAD (the Company),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including material information on accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and of its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, as
adopted by the EU, and the Bulgarian legislation.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) (/IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements of the
Independent Financial Audit Act and sustainability assurance, applicable in Bulgaria, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
management report prepared by management in accordance with the Accountancy Act, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon, unless and to the extent explicitly
specified in our report. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, as adopted by
the EU, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves true and fair presentation.

We communicate with management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In addition to our responsibilities and reporting in accordance with ISAs, described above in
the Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon section,
in relation to the management report, we have also performed the procedures added to those
required under ISAs in accordance with the Guidelines on New and Expanded Auditor's
Reports and Auditor's Communication of the professional organisation of certified public
accountants and registered auditors in Bulgaria, i.e. the Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (ICPA). These procedures refer to testing the existence, form and content of
this other information to assist us in forming an opinion about whether the other information
includes the disclosures and reporting provided for in Chapter Seven of the Accountancy Act
applicable in Bulgaria.

Opinion in connection with Article 37, paragraph 6 of the Accountancy Act
Based on the procedures performed, our opinion is that:

a) The information included in the management report referring to the financial year for
which the financial statements have been prepared is consistent with thase financial
statements;

b) The management report has been prepared in accordance with the applicable
statutory requirements; and

c) As a result of the acquired knowledge and understanding of the activities of the
Company and the environment in which it operates, we have found no cases of
material misrepresentation in the management report.

Mariy Apostolov [signature, illegible] Ivan Gidiyski [signature, illegible]
Managing Partner Registered auditor responsible for the audit

Grant Thornton Ltd.

Audit Firm with Reg. No. 032
27 May 2025

Bulgaria, Sofia city

26, Cherni Vrah Boulevard




Trade Estates Bulgaria EAD 7
Financial Statements
31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements

4 IF General information and scope of business activity

The Company’s principal scope of business activity is the management and leasing of real estate, as
well as the provision of other real property-related services. The Company is registered with the
Commercial Register under UIC 205789473,

The Company was incorporated as a joint stock company in 2012 as a result of a plan approved by the
Board of Directors of House Market Bulgaria EAD for reorganisation, which involved the separation of
its own real estate and the corresponding bank liabilities into the newly incorporated Company. In 2021,
the Company Trade Estates Joint Stock Company for Investments in Real Esiate S.A., Greece. was
incorporated, which acquired the share capital and, respectively. became the sole owner of Trade
Estates Bulgaria EAD

The head office and registered address of the Company is 216 Okolovrasten Pat Str, Sofia City,
Bulgaria

The ultimate controlling entity is Fourlis Holding S A, Greece, which owns 100% of the shares of Trade
Estates Joint Stock Company for Investments in Real Estate S A. The shares of Fourlis Holding S.A.
are listed on the Athens Stock Exchange.

The Company has a one-tier governance system consisting of a Board of Directors with members
Dimitrios Papoulis, Andreas Skyrlas, and Stavroula Moundanou. The manner of representation is either
jointly by the two Executive Directors, Dimitrios Papoulis and Andreas Skyrlas, or by two of the
procurators (autharised signatories), Milena Dimanova, Nicolaos Sfyroeras, and Nicolaos Yfantidis.

The Company had no personnel hired under employment contracts as of 31 December 2024.
2. Statement of compliance with IFRS and application of the going concern concept
2.1. Statement of compliance with IFRS, adopted by the EU

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) Accounting Standards, as elaborated and issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and adopted by the European Union (EU) (IFRS Accounting
Standards). Within the meaning of paragraph 1, item 8 of the Additional Provisions of the Accountancy
Act, applicable n Bulgaria, they comprise International Accounting Standards (IAS), adopted in
accordance with Regulation (EC) 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and of the Council,

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the information in these financial
statements.

2.2, Application of the going concern concept

As of the date of these financial statements, management has made an assessment of the ability of the
Company to continue as a going concern based on the information available for the foreseeable future,
After making enguiries, the Board of Directors has a reasonable expectation that the Company has
sufficient resources to continue operating in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, it continues to apply
the going concern concept in preparning the annual financial statements

3. New or amended standards and interpretations
4. New standards, amendments and interpretations of existing standards as of 1 January
2024

The Company has adopted the following new standards, amendments and interpretations of IFRS,
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and approved by the EU, which are applicable
and effective for the financial statements of the Company for the annual period commencing on 1
January 2024, but do not have a material impact on the financial performance and position of the
Company:

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current, effective from 1 January 2024, adopted by the EU.
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Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements: Non-current Liabilities Linked to
Financial Ratios, effective from 1 January 2024, adopted by the EU

Amendments to IFRS 16, Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease: Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback, effective from 1 January 2024, adopted by the EU;

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments. Disclosures:
Supplier Finance Arrangements, effective from 1 January 2024, adopted by the EU,

441. Standards, amendments and interpretations not yet effective and not early adopted by
the Company

As of the date of approval of these financial statements, new standards, amendments, and
interpretations of existing standards have been issued but are not yet effective or have not been adopted
by the EU for the financial year commencing on 1 January 2024 and have not been early applied by the
Company. It is not expected that they will have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.
Management expects all standards and amendments to be incorporated into the Company's accounting
policy within the first period commencing after the date of their entry into force. Follows a list of the
amendments to standards:

Amendments to IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates: lack of

exchangeability, effective 1 January 2025 r., not yet adopted by the EU;

Annual Improvements, effective from 1 January 202, not yet adopted by the EU;

Changes in Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments (amendments to IFRS 8

and IFRS 7), effective from 1 January 2026, not yet adopted by the EU.

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements, effective from 1 January 2027,

not yet adopted by the EU.

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures, effective from 1 January 2027,

not yet adopted by the EU

5. Significant information on the accounting policy
§1. General provisions

The most significant information regarding the accounting policies applied in preparing these financial
statements is presented below.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and in compliance with the historical
cost convention, except for the property revaluation. Measurement bases are described in detail in the
accounting policies below

The financial statements have been prepared in Bulgarian leva, which is the functional currency of the
Comparny. All amounts have been presented in thousands of Bulgarian leva (BGN'000) (including the
comparatives for 2023} unless stated otherwise

It should be noted that in preparing the accompanying financial statements, accounting estimates and
assumptions have been used. Although these are based on information provided to management as of
the date of preparation of the financial statements, the actual results may differ from the estimates and
assumptions used

5.2. Presentation of the financial statements

The financial statements have been presented in accordance with IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements.

The Company presents the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income In a single
statement

Two comparative periods are presented in the statement of financial position, where the Company has
applied retrospectively the accounting policy, restated retrospectively items in the financial statements
or reclassified ltems in the financial statements, and this has had a significant impact on the information
in the statement of financial position as of the beginning of the previous period.

5.3. Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are presented in the functional currency of the Company using the

exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions (spot exchange rate of the Bulgarian National
Bank), Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and fro
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the remeasurement of monetary items denominated in foreign currency at period-end exchange rates
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items measured at historical cost in foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the transaction date (not retransiated). Non-monetary items measured at fair value in foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined

The exchange rate of the Bulgarian lev is pegged to the Euro in a ratio EUR = BGN 1.95583.
54. Operating expenses

Operating expenses are recognised in profit or loss upon utilisation of the service or as incurred.
5.5. Interest expenses

Interest expenses are reported currently under the effective interest rate method.

Borrowing costs are the interest on the loans of the Company originated by the parent company.
Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred, in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, and reported in finance costs

56. |Lease
5.6.1. The Company as a lessor
As a lessor, the Company classifies its leases as operating or finance leases.

A lease contract is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
associated with ownership of the underlying asset and as an operating lease if it does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards associated with ownership of the underlying asset

The Company earns rental income under operating leases of its investment property (see Note 5).
Rentals are generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Assets under finance leases are reported on the statement of financial position of the Company as a
receivable, at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Any gain on the sale of the assets is
charged to the statement of profit or less and other comprehensive income for the relevant period.
Finance income is recognised based on a model reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the
remaining net investment.

5.7. Investment property

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, which includes the purchase price and any directly
attributable expenditures, such as lawyer's fees, taxes on property transfers and other transaction costs.

The Company reports land and buildings held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, accounted for
using the fair value model, as investment properties.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, which includes the purchase price and any directly
attributable expenditures, such as lawyer's fees, taxes on property transfers and other transaction costs.

Investment properties are remeasured annually and are charged to the statement of financial position
at their market values. The latter are evaluated by independent appraisers with professional
qualifications and considerable professional experience based on evidence of market conditions.

Any gain or loss on changes in the fair value or the sale of investment property shall be recognised
immediately in the profit or loss as .Changes in the fair value of investment property”.

5.8. Financial instruments
5.8.1. Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred
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A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.
5.8.2. Classification and initial measurement of financial assets

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except for the financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and trade receivables without a significant financial component.
The initial measurement of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss through profit or loss is not
adjusted for transaction costs, which are expensed as current expenses. The initial measurement of
trade receivables without a significant financial component is the price of the transaction according to
IFRS 15.

Financial assets are classified in the category of debt instruments at amortised cost.
The classification of the financial assets is determined by two key conditions:

+ the business model of the Company for managing the financial asset, and
» the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss are presented
within finance costs, finance income or other financial items, except for impairment of trade receivables
which is presented within other expenses

5.8.3. Subsequent reporting of financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the assets meet the following conditions and are not
designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss:

« The Company manages the assets within a business model whose objective is to hold the
financial assets and collect its contractual cash flows

= the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows at specific dates that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category includes non-derivative financial assets like loans and receivables with fixed or
determinable payments that are not guoted in an active market. After initial recognition, these are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Discounting is omitted where the effect
of discounting is immaterial. The Company's cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables
fall inta this category.

* Trade receivables

Trade receivables refer to amounts owed by customers for goods or services sold in the ordinary course
of business. Usually, these are due for settlement within a short term and, therefore, are classified as
current. Trade receivables are initially recognised in the amount of unconditional consideration unless
they contain significant financing components. The Company holds its trade receivables to collect
contractual cash flows and, therefore, measures them at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial

5.8.4. Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9's new impairment requirements use more forward-looking information to recognise expected
credit losses — the ‘expected credit loss' (ECL) model.

Instruments that fall within the scope of the new requirements include cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables.

Recognition of credit losses is no longer dependent on the occurrence of a credit loss event. Instead the
Company considers a broader range of information when measuring expected credit losses, including
past events, current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the expected
collectability of the future cash flows of the instrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is made between:

» financial instruments that have not deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition or that have low credit risk (‘Stage 1') and

« financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition
and whose credit risk is not low ('Stage 2')
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« ‘Stage 3 would cover financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the
reporting date. However, none of the Group's financial assets fall into this category.

12-month expected credit losses’ are recognised for the first category while ‘lifetime expected credit
losses’ are recognised for the second category. Expected credit losses are defined as the difference
between all the contractual cash flows that are due to the Company and the cash flows that it actually
expects to receive (‘cash shortfalls'). This difference is discounted at the oniginal effective interest rate
{or credit-adjusted effective interest rate).

Measurement of the expected credit losses is determined by a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses over the expected life of the financial instrument

Trade and other receivables

The Company makes use of a simplified approach in accounting for trade and other receivables as well
as contract assets and records the loss allowance as lifetime expected credit losses. These are the
expected shortfalls in contractual cash flows, considering the potential for default at any point during the
life of the financial instrument.

Significant increase in credit risk

Expected credit losses are measured as an adjustment equal to the 12-month expected credit losses
for Phase 1 assels or the expected credit losses over the life of Phase 2 or Phase 3 assets. An assel
moves to phase 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. IFRS 9 does
not define what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether an asset's credit
risk has increased significantly, the Company considers qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information.

5.8.5. Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
The Company's financial liabilities comprise loans received, trade and other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction
costs unless the Company designated a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequently, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
except for derivatives and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, which are
carned subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (other than derivative financial instruments that
are designated and effective as hedging instruments).

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrument's fair value that are reported in
profit or loss are included within finance costs or finance income.

59. Income taxes

Tax expense recognised in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity

Current tax assets and/or liabilities represent those amounts payable to or receivable from tax authorities
relating to current or prior accounting periods that are unpaid at the date of the financial statements.
Current tax is payable on taxable income that differs from profit or loss in the financial statements. The
computation of the income tax is based on the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred income taxes are calculated using the liability method for all temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases Deferred tax is not provided
on the initial recognition of an asset or liability unless the transaction affects tax or accounting profit.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted. They are calculated using tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period in which they are realised, provided that they have been enacted, or are
expected to be enacted, by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised in full.

Deferred taxes are recognised only if it is probable that they will be utilised against future taxable profits.
Regarding the management's judgement of the probability of occurrence of future taxable profits through
which the deferred tax assets are to be utilised, see Note 4.12.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if the Company has a right and intention to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities by the same taxation authority.

The change in deferred tax assels or liabilities is recognised as a component of the tax income or
expense in profit or loss unless it is related to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the corresponding deferred tax is recognised in other comprehensive
income or equity.

5.10. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in bank accounts, and demand deposits and
deposits maturing within 3 months.

5.11. Equity, reserves and dividend distribution
The Company's share capital represents the nominal (par) value of shares that have been issued
Other reserves consist of a translation reserve.

Retained earnings Includes the current financial result and prior period accumulated profits and
uncovered losses.

Dividend distributions payable to equity shareholders are included in Payables to related parties in the
statement of financial position when the dividends have been approved in a general meeting of
shareholders prior to the reporting date.

All transactions with the Company’s owners are recorded separately within the statement of changes in
equity.
§.12. Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies

The significant judgements made by management in applying the accounting policies of the Company
that have the most significant effect on the financial statements are described below. The main sources
of uncertainly in using accounting estimates are described in Note 5.13.

5.12.1. Deferred tax assets

The estimate of the probability of future taxable income for the utilisation of deferred tax assets is based
on the most recently approved budget forecast, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and
expenses and specific limitations on the carry forward of unused tax losses or credits. If reliable
estimates of taxable income indicate that it is probable that a deferred tax asset will be utilised,
particularly in cases where the asset can be utilised without a time limit, then the deferred tax asset is
recognised in full. The recognition of deferred tax assets subject to specific legal or economic restrictions
or uncertainties is assessed by management on a case-by-case basis, considering the particular facts
and circumstances.

5.13. Estimation uncertainty

In preparing the financial statements, management makes a number of assumptions, estimates and
Judgements about the recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

Actual results may differ from these assumptions, estimates, and judgements of management, and in
rare cases, these may conform fully to previously estimated results.

Information about the significant assumptions, estimates and judgements that have the most significant
effect on the recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is presented
below.

5.13.1. Fair value measurement

Management employs techniques to estimate the fair value of investment property it owns. In applying
valuation techniques, management makes maximum use of market data and assumptions that market
participants would use in valuing an instrument. Where suitable market data is not available,
management uses ils best estimate of the assumptions that market participants would make These
estimates may differ from the actual prices that would be determined in an arm's length transaction
between knowledgeable and willing parties at the end of the reporting period (see Note 22).
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6. Investment property

The Company's investment property includes land and a building, representing a retail property located
in Sofia city, Vitosha district, 216, Okolovrasten Pat Street. The retail property is leased to House Market
Bulgaria EAD and used for the sale of furniture and household goods bearing the IKEA trademark.

For more information on determining the fair value of investment property, see Note 22.

The changes in the carrying amounts presented in the statement of financial position may be
summarised as follows:

2024 2023

BGN'000 BGN'000

Carrying amount as of 1 January 92 190 89 186
Net gain on changes in fair value 889 3 004
Carrying amount as of 31 December 93 079 92 190

In 2022, a contractual mortgage was established on the investment property owned by Trade Estates
Bulgaria EAD as the Guarantor, covering the land property and the entire building, despite any
subsequent changes in the purpose andfor reconstructions, aimed at securing the receivables of
Eurobank Bulgaria AD (as a Debenture holder) and Eurobank S.A., Greece (as a Debenture holder's
Agent and Debenture holder) in connection with a debenture loan originated from Trade Estates Joint
Stock Company for Investments in Real Estate S A, Greece, of EUR 70 million. The investment property
was leased under an operating lease contract.

The 2024 rental income of BGN 7,252,256 (2023. BGN 6,945,006) was reported on the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in line "Rental income”.

The lease agreement with House Market Bulgaria EAD is concluded for a 15-year term, commencing
on 19 August 2019, i.e. it ends on 19 September 2034. The annual rent is 6% of the turnover generated
from the leased retail property but not less than the agreed-upon "Minimum guaranteed rent”. The
guaranteed yearly rent shall be indexed annually, and for 2024, it amounted to BGN 7,282 thousand or
BGN 607 688 per month. During the reporting periods, the calculated variable rent did not exceed the
agreed "Minimum guaranteed rent”

The terms and conditions of the lease agreements have been negotiated individually on a contract-by-
contract basis, and therefore, each contract shall be considered separately. The lease contracls do not
contain a requirement to observe specific financial indicators or other requirements beyond the lessor's
property rights

The future minimum lease proceeds are presented as follows:
Minimum lease proceeds

Within1 From1to From 2to From 3to From 4 to Over 5 Total
year 2years dyears 4 years 5 years years
BGN'0O00 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
31 December 2024 7511 7736 7 568 8 207 8 454 43778 B3 654
31 December 2023 7282 7511 7736 T 9868 8 207 52232 80 946
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7. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets occur as a result of temporary differences and may be presented as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities 1 January Recognised 31 December
2024  through profit 2024
or loss
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Mon-current assets
Investment property 1712 359 2071
1712 359 20M
Deferred tax liabilities ) 1712 2071
Recognised as:
Net deferred tax liabilities 1712 2071
Deferred tax assets for the comparative period 2023 may be summarised as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities 1 January Recognised 31 December
2023 through profit 2023
or loss
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Non-current assets
Investment property 1142 570 1712
1142 570 1712
Deferred tax liabilities 1142 1712
Recognised as:
Net deferred tax liabilities 1142 1712

8. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include the following components:

2024 2023
BGN'000 BGN'000
Cash with banks and on hand denominated in:

- Bulgarian leva 1728 3 467
-EUR 131 50
Cash and cash equivalents 1859 3 517

The Company has estimated expected credit losses on cash and cash equivalents. The estimated
amount is less than 0.1% of the gross value of cash deposited with financial institutions and, therefore,
has been deemed immaterial and has not been accrued in the Company's financial statements.

9. Equity
89.1. Share capital

The Company's registered capital consists of 52,758,203 ordinary shares, each with a nominal value of
BGN 1. All shares vest the right to dividend and a liquidation share. Since 2021, the sole shareholder
has been Trade Estates Joint Stock Company for Investments in Real Estate S.A., Greece.

9.2 Other reserves

Other reserves amount to (minus) BGN 1,919 thousand and represent a reserve from transformation
which has occurred upon the incorporation of the Company in 2019 as the difference between the net
value of property contributed in-kind of BGN 50,839 thousand (the fair value of the real estate of BGN
86,044 thousand and bank liabilities of BGN 35,205 thousand) and the value of the subscribed share
capital of BGN 52,758 thousand
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9.3. Dividends

In 2024, the Company distributed a dividend to its sole owner in the amount of EUR 2,000 thousand or
BGN 3,913 thousand (2023 EUR 3,600 thousand or BGN 7,041 thousand).

The dividends paid during the period amount to EUR 3,200 thousand or BGN 6,258 thousand (2023
EUR 4,500 thousand or BGN 8,801 thousand).

There is no tax on dividends distributed to foreign legal entities from the EU.

10. Loans from related parties

In 2022, the Company signed a loan contract with its sole owner, Trade Estates Joint Stock Company
for Investments in Real Estate S.A., Greece, for an amount of EUR 13,800 thousand (BGN 26,990
thousand). The purpose of the loan is to refinance the syndicated bank loan with UniCredit Bulbank AD,
DSK Bank EAD and Eurcbank Bulgaria AD. The loan term is eight years, ending on 10 June 2029, and
repayment is to be made in annual instalments according to a repayment schedule. The interest rate
was renegotiated in January 2024 and made equal to the 3M EURIBOR plus a 2. 5% margin. The loan
is not secured,

The loan payables include the following financial liabilities:

_ Current Non-current

2024 2023 2024 2023
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN’000

Financial liabilities carried at amortised

cost:

Loan from related parties 1080 B10 24 291 25 371
Loan interest 454 106 : —
Total carrying amount 1534 916 24 291 253M

The carrying amount of the loan is assumed to be a reasonable estimate of its fair value.

11. Trade and other payables

2024 2023

BGN'000 BGN'000

Trade payables 5 3
VAT payable 121 115
Other liabilities 1 10
Current trade and other payables 137 128

The net carrying amount of the current trade and other payables is assumed to be a reasonable estimate
of their fair values.

12. Other income

The Company's other income of BGN 387 thousand (2023: BGN 387 thousand) is a quarterly reinvoiced
garbage charge under the lease contract with House Market Bulgana EAD




Trade Estates Bulgaria EAD 16
Financial Statements
31 December 2024

13. Operating expenses

2024 2023
BGN'000 BGN'000
Garbage charge (387) (387)
Tax on buildings (173) (173)
Costs of hired services (56) (59)
Property insurance (7) (6}
Other expenses (1) -
(624) (625)

14. Finance costs
2024 2023
BGN'000 BGN'000
Interest expenses (1627) (1787)
Bank charges (18) (11)
(1 645) (1798)

15. Income tax expense

The estimated tax expenses based on the effective tax rate of 10% for Bulgaria (2023: 10%), and the
actual recognised tax expenses in profit or loss may be reconciled as follows

2024 2023

BGN'000 BGN'000

Profit before taxes 6298 7913

Tax rate 10% 10%

Estimated income tax expenses (623) (791)
Tax effect of.

Decreases in the financial result for taxation purposes 358 570
Other adjustments (70) (31)
Current income tax expense (334) (252)
Deferred tax expenses:

Occurrence and reversal of temporary differences (359) (570)
Income tax expenses (693) (822)

Mote 7 provides information on the deferred tax assets and liabilities, including the amounts recognised
directly in other comprehensive income
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16. Related party transactions

17

The related parties of the Company are the owners, key management staff, and other persons described

below.

If not stated expressly, the related party transactions have not been carried out under special terms and

conditions and no guarantees have been provided or received.
16.1. Transactions with owners

Purchases of services from Fourlis Holding S A , Greece
Interest on loan originated from Trade Estates Joint Stock Company
for Investments in Real Estate C A, Greece

Dividends
16.2. Transactions with other related party under common control

Rent of House Market Bulgaria EAD
Sale of services to House Market Bulgaria EAD

16.3. Transactions with key management staff
In 2024 and 2023, the key management staff was not paid remuneration.

17. Related party balances at the year-end

Payables to Trade Estates Joint Stock Company for Investments
in Real Estate C.A, Greece

MNan-current portion of the loan liability

Current portion of the loan liability

Interest liability

Dividends payable

Payables to Fourlis Holding 5.A., Greece
Trade payables

Total payables to related parties

18. Reconciliation of liabilities originating from financing activity

2024 2023
BGN'000 BGN'000
(19) (19)
(1627) (1787)
(3913) (7 041)
2024 2023
BGN'000 BGN'000
7,292 6,945
387 387

2024 2023

BGN'000 BGN'000

24 291 25371

1080 810

454 106

4 694 7 041

30 519 33 328

10

= 10

30 519 33 338

The changes in the Company's liabilities originating from financing activity may be classified as follows:

Long-term Short-term Total
loans loans
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
1 January 2024 253N 916 26 287
Cash flows:
Principal payable - (810) (810)
Interest payable _ - (1279) (1279)
Non-cash changes:
Interest accrual - 1627 1827
Reclassification (1 080) 1 080 -
31 December 2024 24 291 1534
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22. Risks related to financial instruments
Risk management objectives and policies

The Company is exposed to various risks regarding its financial instruments. For more information about
the Company's financial assets and liabilities by categories, see Note 21. The most significant financial
risks to which the Company is exposed are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company's rnisks are managed by the central administration of the Company in cooperation with the
Board of Directors. It is a priority of management to ensure short-term and mid-term cash flows by
reducing its exposure to financial markets.

The most significant financial risks to which the Company is exposed are described in the following
paragraphs.

22.1. Market risk analysis

Due to the use of financial instruments, the Company is exposed to market risk, including the risk of
changes in exchange rates, interest rate risk, and risk of changes in specific prices, which arise from
the Company's operating and investing activities.

22.1.1. Currency risk

The majority of the Company's transactions are carried out in Bulgarian leva and eurc. The Company is
not exposed to foreign currency risk on sales, purchases and investments because they are not
denominated in currencies other than the euro and Bulgarian leva. The Bulgarian lev is pegged to the
euro at an exchange rate of BGN 1.95583 to EUR 1.

22.1.2. Interest rate risk

The Company's policy is directed towards minimising the interest rate risk upon long-term financing. As
of 31 December 2024, the Company was exposed to the risk of changes in market interest rates on the
loan provided by the sole owner, which bears a variable interest rate. All other financial assets and
liabilities of the Company bear fixed interest rates

The following tables illustrate the sensitivity of the annual net financial result after taxes and equity lo a
probable change in interest rates on variable-rate loans, based on the 3-month EURIBOR, with a change
of +/- 0.37% (2023: +/- 0.53%). These changes are assessed as probable based on observations of
current market conditions. The calculations are based on the change in the average market interest rate
and on financial instruments held by the Company at the end of the reporting period that are sensitive
to interest rate changes. All other parameters are assumed constant.

31 December 2024 Net financial result Equity
Interest rate  Interest rate Interest rate  Interest rate
increase decrease increase decrease
Loan (3M EURIBOR +/-0.37%) (84) 84 (84) 84
31 December 2023 Net financial result Equity
Interest rate  Interest rate Interest rate  Interest rate
increase decrease increase decrease

Loan (3M EURIBOR +/-0.53%) (125) 125 (125) 125
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22.2. Credit risk analysis

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not pay its liability to the Company. The Company is exposed
to this type of risk in connection with vanous financial instruments, such as receivables from customer
and depositing of funds. The exposure of the Company to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of
financial assets recognised at the end of the reporting period. as set out below:

2024 2023
BGN'000 BGN'000

Groups of financial assets — carrying amounts:
Cash and cash equivalents 1858 3517

Carrying amount 1859 3517

The Company regularly monitors defaults of its customers and other counterparties, established
individually or in groups, and uses this information to control credit risk. It is a policy of the Company to
transact only with counterparties that have good credit ratings. The Company's management considers
all of the above financial assets that were neither impaired nor matured during the reporting periods to
be financial assets with high credit ratings

The Company has not pledged its financial assets as collateral under other transactions.
As of the dale of the financial statements, there were no past due trade and other receivables.

Regarding trade and other receivables, the Company is not exposed to significant credit risk from an
individual counterparty or a group of counterparties with similar characteristics. Trade receivables
consist of the lessee of the investment property, House Market Bulgaria EAD, a related party —a member
of the group of Fourlis Halding S.A., Greece. There has been no case of non-payment so far,

Credit risk associated with cash and cash equivalents, money market funds, unsecured bonds, and
derivative financial instruments is considered immaterial, as the counterparties are banks with good
reputations and high external credit ratings.

No impairment loss has been recognised in respect of cash and cash equivalents. The carrying amounts
described above represent the maximum possible exposure to credit risk of the Company with respect
to these financial instruments.

The Company applies the simplified model of recognising lifelong expected credit losses under IFRS 9
to all trade receivables as they have no significant financial component.

22.3. Liquidity risk analysis

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to pay its liabilities. The Company satisfies
its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring payments under the repayment schedules of its long-term
financial liabilities and cash inflows and outflows arising from its operating activities. Liguidity needs are
monitored for various periods. Long-term liquidity needs, for periods of 180 and 380 days, are
determined on a monthly basis. The need for liquid funds is compared with the loans available to identify
surpluses or deficits. This analysis determines whether the available loans will be sufficient to meet the
Company’s needs for the relevant period

The Company holds cash on hand to meet its liquidity needs for periods of up to 30 days. Funds for
long-term liquidity needs are provided through loans in a suitable amount.

As of 31 December 2024, the maturities of the Company's contractual obligations (containing interest
payments, where applicable) are summarised as follows:

Current Non-current

31 December 2024 Withiné From6 to From1to5 Over 5
months 12 months years years

BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000

Loans from related parties 454 1080 5128 19 163
Trade and other payables 5 - - -
Payables to related parties - 4 694 - -
Total 459 5774 5128 19 163

ﬁ&%}
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The maturities of the Company's contractual obligations in the previous reporting period are summarised
as follows:

Current Non-current

31 December 2023 Within6 From 6 to From1to 5 Over 5
months 12 months years years

BGN’000 BGN'000 BGN’000 BGN'000

Loans from related parties 106 810 4 B58 20 513
Trade and other payables 3 - . -
Payables to related parties - 7 051 - -
Total 109 7 B61 4 858 20 513

The amounts disclosed in this liability maturity analysis are the undiscounted cash flows under the
contracts, which may differ from the carrying amounts of the liabilities as of the reporting date.

Financial assets as a means to manage the liquidity risk

In assessing liquidity risk management, the Company reports the estimated cash flows from financial
instruments, specifically available cash and trade receivables The available cash and trade receivables
do not significantly exceed current cash outflow needs. According to the concluded contracts, all cash
flows from trade and other receivables are due within six months

23. Fair value management of non-financial assets

The Company's investment property comprises land and a building, representing a single retail property
located in Sofia city

The assessment of the fair value hierarchy is classified as Level 3 since significant unobservable data
has been used:

2024 2023
BGN'000 BGN'000

Investment property:
Retail property — Level 3 63 079 92 190

As of 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the fair value of the Company's investment property
was assessed based on valuation reports drawn up by independent licensed valuers.

Land and a retail building (Level 3)

The fair value of the retail property has been assessed using both the market approach and the income
approach, with a weight of 20% to 80% for each approach.

By applying the market approach, the fair value of the property is based on comparative data for other
retail properties available for sale or sold in the area surrounding the property, as well as in Sofia as a
whole. After analysing the comparative data and taking into account the unique characteristics of the
property being evaluated, a price of 2,800 EUR/m* was applied for the retail space and 900 EUR/m? for
the ancillary and storage space. The fair value of the investment properties, as estimated using the
market approach, was EUR 45 440 thousand.

The income approach is based on the discounted cash flow (DCF) method, according to which expected
rental income is capitalised, net of operating expenses, using a discount rate that corresponds to the
sum of a nsk-free rate plus an additional risk premium adjusted for various factors and market conditions.
The method takes into account projected cash flows over 10 years, including an estimated sales value
at the end of the period

Anacther underlying assumption is that the evaluated property will continue to be leased to IKEA
according to the lease contract concluded with House Market Bulgaria EAD in 2018, which spans a
period of 30 years (15 years plus a 15-year extension)

Applying a rental price ranging from 3 EUR/m2 to 11 EUR/m2 depending on the type of the space (retail,
warehouse or ancillary space) and a discount factor of 9.5%, the fair value of the investment properties
was estimated at EUR 48,128 thousand. The fair value would increase if the rental value increases or
the discount factor decreases. The valuation is sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
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Applying the market approach and income approach, as described above, the fair value of the
investment properties was estimated at EUR 47 590 thousand,

The opening balance of non-financial assets at Level 3 may be reconciled with their closing balance as
of the reporting date, as follows:

2024 2023

BGN'000 BGN'000

Carrying amount as of 1 January 92190 89 186
Net gain on changes in fair values 889 3 004
Carrying amount as of 31 December 83 079 92190

24. Capital management policies and procedures

The capital management objectives of the Company are as follows:
+ toensure the Company's ability to continue to exist as a going concern; and
» To ensure adequate returns for the owners by pricing its products and services in
consideration of its risk appetite.
« To meet the requirements imposed by third parties on the entity in connection with third party
financing or licensing activities (banks, debenture holders etc.)

The Company monitors the capital based on the ratio of adjusted capital to net debt.

The Company determines the adjusted capital based on the carrying amount of the equity and
subordinated debt reported on the statement of financial position.

The subordinated debt includes the unsecured loans originating from the parent company.

The net debt includes the sum of all trade and other payables less the carrying amount of cash and cash
equivalents

The capital for the presented reporting periods may be analysed as follows:

2024 2023

BGN'O0O0 BGN'000

Equity 62 212 €0 519
+Subordinated debt 25 B25 26 287
Adjusted capital 88 037 86 806
Total liabilities 4 831 7194
- Cash and cash equivalents (1 859) (3 517)
Net debt 2972 3677
Ratio of adjusted capital to net debt 1:0.03 1:0.04

25. Events after the end of the reporting period

No adjusting or significant non-adjusting events have occurred between the date of the financial
statements and the date of authorisation for issue, except for the following non-adjusting event:

Foliowing a hacking attack on the IT systems of Fourlis Group at the end of 2024, the process of
restoring the Group's systems, including those of the Company, commenced actively in January 2025
and continued until February 2025 Ongoing activities are carried out to enhance the levels of protection
and secure processes more reliably
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26. Authorisation of the financial statements

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 (including comparatives) were
authorised for Issue by the Board of Directors on 15 April 2025.

I, the undersigned Dobrinka Petrova Kra_sfwa* holder of a Letter of Confirmation No. 00336-1 of 19
March 2018, issued by the Consular Relations Directorate of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs, certify the
accuracy of my translation from Bulgarian into English of the attached document (Financial statements
of Trade Estates Bulgania EAD for the year ended 31 December 2024 and an Independent Auditor’s
Report thereon). The translation consists of 30 Ahirty/ pages.

Translator Dobrinka Peirova Kmstava/(
’6&{-" : <
















Tpeitg Ecreirc Bunrapwn EAJ] m
lNopuwen aoknan 3a gedHoCTTa

2024r,

KOSTO CLOTBETCTEA HA AOrOBOPEHETE EXErogHE MHOBKCALUMA Ha ,MUHWMENHKA rEpaHTMpaH Haew”,
KaTO ONEepPaTHEHWTE PE3X0AW OCTABaT HA HWBOTO OT NPEAXOAHATE roUHA.

DuHancosuTe pasxogw Genemar cnag c 153 xun. ne. unm 8.5% B cneactewe Ha nNpenorosopeHnA
MMXBEH NPOUeHT C epHonuuHuR cu cobereenmk Tpeidn Ecreitc Axywonepro [pywectso 3a
WHeecTulMm B Hegemwmmo Mimyigectao” C.A., MspusMa, KBKTO U HEMANEHWETO HA IMABHMLATE NO 33eMa
C NNELLAHETO N0 AOrOBOPHMA NOrACHTENEH NNEH,

MoapobHa MHDOPMaLMA OTHOCHO NPUXOQWTE, PAIXOAMTE i GANaHCOBUTE NOIMUAK Ha Hpywecraoto
Mpes TeKyluna W CpasHMMWA NEepWof, & NpeacTsBeda BbE (MHEHCOBMA OTY4ET, 33 roguHaTa
npuknictBalla Ha 31 gekemepu 2024 r,

Kem patata wa waroTesHe Ha WHaHCOBMA OTWET PLKOBOACTEOTO @ HanpasMno oueMKka Ha
cnocoBHOCTTa Ha APYWECTBOTO 48 NPOgwIDKA O8 thyHKUMOHWpa KaTo AeRCTBaLLO NPeanpUATHE Ha
Gasara na HanwiHaTa wHdopmauus & obospumo Guaewe. Cnen HaNPaBEHUTE NPOYHBaHKA CheeTuT
HE QWPEKTOpUTE MMA PalyMHW OYaKBaHWRA, Ye [ipyxecTeoTo pasnonara ¢ 4OCTATLYHO PEcypcH, 38 A8
npogebxku A8 dyHKUMOHWPa B o6o3puMo Gbaelye. CLOTBETHO TO NPOABMXABS 48 NpHeMar NpMHLKNE
Ha geACTBALLD NPEANPUATHE NPK KAFOTBRHETO HE FOQULUHIA (MHAHEOB OTYeT.

[py%ecTeOTO HAMA HEET NAPCOHAN NO TPYAOBM NPABOCTHOLLEHKS KoM 31 Aexemapu 2024 r,

HeinocTTa Ha Tpeidg EcTeire Gunrapus EAJL @ HenpoMIBOACTBEHE W HE OKA3Ba NPAKC BhageAcTeHe
BLpXY OHONHETA CPega W HBRHOTO 3aMbpcABaHe,

fpymecTeoTo He anara HEMaTEPHANHA PECYPCH 38 CObLUIBCTBRBAHETO Ha GERHOCTTS CH.
4. MMpepswxnaxo pazawTve

Apy®ecTeoTO We Npodbnwi A8RHOCTTa cH W B Gugelwe npu YCNOBWATA HE CKNIOYEHMA foroeop 3a
Haem c Xayc Mapket Ewnrapus EAJl. OJakBaHnATa 38 cneasalMn Neprog Ca NpMxXoOuTe oT Haes ga
HapecHaT B8 CbOTBETCTEME OOMOBODEHATE WHASKCELUMA HAE MUHUMAENHWA rapaHTupaH Haem",
PLKDBOACTBOTO HE O4EKBA @ WME CNaj 8 UGHWTE Ha HEABUKMMMTE UMOTW B DErMOHA, KOMTO fa ce
OTPa3AT HEMATUEHO Ha CNpaBegNWeaTa CTORHOCT Ha MHBECTMUMOHHMA MMOT M CHOTBETHO 48 NOBNWAAT
CTPHUATENHO HA (PHHEHCOBMRA pesynTar.

He ce npejeumaaT cAenk OT CHLLECTBEHO 3Ha4eHWe 3a feAHocTTa He [lpywecTsoTto, M3ssH
noTeHusanHuTe kacaelw SuOelloTo My passuTHe.

5. CwOWTWA cnea kpam Ha OTHETHMA NepUog

He ca Bu3HMKHENK KOPUIMPELLW CLEATUR UMK IHBHNUTENHW HEKOPUIMPALLM CHOMTHA MEXZY G3TaTa Ha
PUHEHCOBMA OTYET M JATATA HA OTOPUINDEHETO My 38 M3IQEBAHE, C WIKNICYEHWE HE CNeAHOTO
HEKOPWrMPALLD CobBnTHE:

Cnep wasspliena xakepcka araka cpeiyy UT cuctemuTe Ha Fourlis Group s kpas Ha 2024 1., npouecsT
Ha BbICTAHOBABAHE HA CUCTEMUTE Ha rpyYNaTa, B T.4. Ha [pywecTeoTo CTApTUPA BKTMBHO NPea AHyapH
2025 r. W npogwnxasa ao despyapu 2025 r. B %04 ca Npogb/MHKasallyn ABAHOCTH, HACOMEHW KbM
nosKilLasaHe He HWBETA HaE 381UWTE W No-HagExaHoTo obeanevasaHe Ha NPOLEBCHTE.

15 anpun 2025 r.
Hukonaoc WdpaHTuanc Minneis nwandes

IMpoxypucm Mpokypucm
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AOKNAO HA HESABUCUMUA OQUTOP

[Oo egHoNWYHWA aKUMOHED HA
Tpenn Ectewtc Benrapwa EAJ]
yn. OkonoepbcTed msT Ne216

rp. Codchmn

[oknag oTHOCHO 0AUTa Ha (PMHAHCOBMA OTYET

MueHue

Hite H3BbpWMXME OAWT Ha thiHancoBun oTyeT Ha Tpeina Ectente Bunrapua EAL { JlpywecTaoro’), chabpsaly
aTYeTa 3a (PUHAHCOBOTO CLCTOAHKE KbM 31 aexemepn 2024 r. w otyeTa 3a nevanBata vnw 3arybata v apyria
BcecbxeaTeH A0X0M OTYETA 338 NPOMEHUTE B COBCTBEHWA KANWTAN W OTYETA 33 NAPWMHINTE NOTOUM 38 FOAWHATE,
33PBPWBALE HE TAIW 03TA, KAKTO W NOACHWUTENHWTE NPUNOWEHWA KbM (WHAHCOBMA OTHET, ChAbIWailk
ChIECTEEHE WHIPOPMALIMA DTHOCHD CYETOBOAHATE NONUTHKE W APYIa NORCHATENHE MHEIOPMaLWR,

Mo Halle MHEHWE, NPMNOXMEHWAT HMHBHCOR OTYET 4ABA BAPHSE W HBCTHA NPEACTana 3a hMHAHCOBOTO ChCTORKWE
Ha Opywectsoro kbm 31 gexemspu 2024 r., Herosute (hMHAHCOBW PEIYNTATH OT ABAHOCTTA M NAPHYHMTE MY
NOTOLUM 33 rOAWHATE, 338bLPLUIBALLS HA Ta3dW AaTta, B choTteeTcTere ¢ MCPO cueToBOAHW CTAHOAPTH, NDWMETH OT
EC w GunrapckoTo 3aKoH00aTencTao.

Baza 3a MIpazABaHe Ha MHEHWe

Hue vasbpwiame HaWWA 04UT B CLOTEETCTEME C MemayHapogHUTe oaMTOpCKW craigaptw (MOC). Hawwre
OTMOECPHOCTH CLIMEcHD Teaw CTaHgapTi ca ONWCaHW AONLNHUTENHD B Pa3fena oOT Halwwd aoxnag
LOTTOBOPHOCTH HA CAMTOPa 33 0AWTa Ha thuHancoBMA otveT”. Hue cme wesaswcumu o1 [pywectaoto a
choTEETCTEME C MeEWAyHEpOOHMA ETWHEH KOQEKC HAa NPOMECHOHANHWTE CUETOBOAMTENW (BKNOYMUTENHO
MexaysapogHn cTaHapTH 38 HesaBucumocT] Ha Coueera 3a wmewdyHapoaHw CTaWgapTw no eTwka za
cueToaoauTenu (Kogekca va CMCEC)", 3a8H0 C eTHHMHMTE MIUCKBaHUA Ha 3aK0HA 33 HEIZBWCHMWR huHaHcos
OAWT M WIPA3ABAHETO HA CHNYDHOCT NO YCTORMKWBOCTTA, NDHNOXAM B BLNrapua, KaTo HWE MANBNHEIME W HBLLWTE
ApYT™M EeTWYHM OTTOBOPHOCTM B ChLOTBETCTEME C TESW WAMCKRaHWA Hue cunTame, de OQMTOPCKWTE
ACKa3aTeNncTea, NONYYEHM OT HAC, Ca AOCTATLYHK W YMECTHW, 32 43 ocurypaT Gasa 3a HAWeTD MHeHWE

Opyra uncopMmaumna, painuyHa oT (hHaHCOBMA OTYET U OAMTOPCKUA JOKNaa BLpXy Hero

PrOBOACTROTO HOCH OTTOBOPHOCT 38 Apyrata wegopmauwa, [pyrata uHopMaUWA ce CLCTOM OT JoKnag 3a
ABRHOCTTA, WIrOTBEH OT PLKOBOACTBEOTO ChINAacHo Jakoa 3a CYeTOBOACTBOTD, HO HE BEMIOYBA (AMHAHCOBMS
OTYET M HALWWA OAMTORCKM JOKNMAN BLPXY HEMD.

HalieTo MHeHWe OTHOCHO (DMHANCOBWA OTHET He obxBawa apyrata HDOPMELMA W HHE HE IPaIABAME KAKBaTO
¥ A8 & (JOpMa HA 3SKMIOYEHWE 38 CUTYPHOCT OTHOCHO HER, OCBEH BKO HE @ MIPHYHO NOCOMEHD B AOKNAAE HA U
AC CTENEHTA, A0 KOATOD & NOCOYEHD. BB BPLIKa C HALWWA 00MT Ha (PWHAHCOBWA DTYET, HAaWara OTTOBOPHOCT Ce
CLCTOW B TOBA 03 NPOMETEM APYrata WHOODPMEUMA W N0 TO3W HEYWH 43 NPEUEHWM Janw Tasw apyra
MHDOPMELWA € B CLLUECTBEHD HECLOTBETCTEME C (hMHAHCOBNA OTYET UMK C HALWMTE NDIHEHWA, NPUacBuTH No
BPEME Ha OOQUTa, WK N0 APYT HAYWH M3TNENE 03 ChAbPXa ChUWECTEEHD HENPABNNHO OoKknagsaqe. B cny4ai
we Ha balata wa pabBoTaTa, KOATO CME WIBLPLUMNK, HWE AOCTHTHEM A0 JAKTIOMEHHE, Y& & HANWUE CbLIECTBEHD
HEMNPABANHO AoKNafeaqHe 8 Tasu ApyTra UHOopMaLMA, OT HAC &0 WIMCKESD Oa AOWNAABAMS ToaW PakT. Hamame
KEKBO 0a OoKNadBame B TOB3 OTHOWEHWE,



GrantThornton

OTroBOPHOCT Ha PLKOBOAGTEOTO 3a (hHHAHCOBMA OTHYET

PLHOBOACTBOTO HOCH OTTOBOPHOCT 38 MAFOTBAHETO W AOCTOBEPHOTO NPESCTABAHE HA TOIW DHHEHCOB OTYET B
cwoTeeTcTEME ¢ MCPO cueTosognn cranaapt, npuet ot EC u GLNrapckoTo 3aKOHOAATEeNcTeO, KakTo 1 3a
TaKasa CUCTEMS 33 BLTPELUEH KOHTPON, KAKBATO PEROBOACTBOTO ONpeaennA kato neobxoawma 3a ocurypReane
HIrOTBAHETO HA (PMHAHCOBM OTHETH, KOMTO HE ChALPKAT CLLUECTBEHW HENPABMNHA OTYMTAHWR, HE3IBBNCMO
Oany AxMEau C8 Ha HIMaMa 1w rpewea.

Mpw waroTeAHE HA HUHEHCOBMA OTUET PLEOBOACTROTO HOCH OTTOBOPHOCT 38 OUEHABAHE Ha CNOCOBHOCTTa Ha
Apy#ecTBOTo A3 NPOALMHMM A8 DYHKUWOHWPa KaTo ASACTEAWO NPEANPWATHE, DNOBECTSBANKA, KOraTo ToBa e
NPpANOMAMO, BBNpOCH. CEBLD3AHW C NPeanonoXeHdeTo 33 [SACTBALLD NPeanpUATHE W WIN0NIBaRKW
cyeToBoamaTa Ba3a Ha oCHOBATA Ha NPEANONOKEHWETO 3a ASACTBAWWO NPeANDWATWE, OCBEH ako
PLEOBOACTBOTO HE BLIHAMEPRBA A2 NukBMaupa [pysecTeoro Mnu ga NPeycTaHoBW ABAHOGCTTA MY, WNM aKo
PBEOBOACTBOTO HA NPAKTHKE HAMAE Opyra anTepHaTHEa, OCREH 43 NOCTLIN NO TOIW HAYHH.

OTroBopHOCTH Ha OQMTOPAE 33 OOMTA HA (PUHAHCOBMA OTHET

Hawure uenu ca Aa NonyyMM palymHa cCTeneH Ha CUIyPHOCT OTHOCHD TOBa AanW MHAHCOBWAT OTYET KaTO
UANC He ChAbpMa ChECTBEHW HENPEBWMNHN OTYMTAHWA, HEIEBMCUMO JANW ALNNALM C8 H3 HIMAME WM
rpewka, ¥ 4a Waganem OANTOopPCKM ADKNAA, KOWTO 48 BHNKYES HALWETO OAWTOPCKD MHeHne. PazymHara creneu
H3 CUTYPHOCT € BYCOKE CTENEH HA CUIYPHOCT, HO HE & FApaHUMe, Y& OOWT, MABbPLUeH B ChoTRETCTEME C MOC »
3akoHa 3a HE3EBWCWMWA (DMHEHCOB OOMT W WIPA3IABANETO HA CHTYPHOCT No YCTORMHMBOCTTa, BMHar we
Pa3kpMBa CbIIECTBEHD HENPABMNHO OTYMTAHE, KOTATO TAKOBA ChLUECTBYBa. HenpaBunHM OTUWTaHKA MOraT ga
BhLIHWKHET B PEIYNTAT HA MIMaMa MMM TDELLKA W CB CYWTAT 38 ChIUBCTEEHW, ako BW Morno pasymHo aa ce
O4EKBA, 4E T, CAMOCTORTENHO WNW KaTO ChBKYNHOCT, DMXa MOTMK 03 OKaKaT BNHAHKE BLRXY WKOMOMWHECKHTE
peleHiA Ha noTpeGnTenuTe, BIEMaHN Bb3 OCHOBA Ha TO3W (DMHAHCOE OTHET,

Kato 4act oT oguta B cboTteeTcTEMe ¢ MOC, Wwe wanonizmame npodecwoHanHa NpeueHka W Janaisame
NPOECHOHANEH CRENTULMILM N0 BPEME Ha Uenua 0guT. Hue chwo Taka:

—~  MABHTWHWUMPaME W OUBHABAME PUCKOBETE OT CHLWECTBEHM HENPABMNHW OTYMTAHWA BbE (UHAHCOBMA
OTHET, HE3ABUCKMO Aany JbMEALLN CB H3 HIMaMa Wnv rpewka, papaboTeame 1 MINLNHABAME OAWTOPCHM
NpoUeaypW B OTTOBOP Ha TEIW DMCKOBE W NONY4YaBaMe 0AMTOPCKY 4OKBIaTeNCTEa, KOWTO A3 .3 A0CTATEYHW
W YMECTHM, 338 A8 ocwrypaT Ga3a 3a WaweTo mueHve. PuckeT ga we Onfle paskpuTo ChUeCTBEHO
HENPaBUNHO OTYWTAEHE, KOBTO & PeaynTaT OT WAMEMAa, € NO-BUCOK, OTKOMKOTO PHCKA OT ChiUecTBeHD
HEMNPABMNHO OTYMTAHE, KOBTO & PeIYNTAT OT FPelka, ThA KaTo KIMaAMaTa MOXE Oa BINKYBa TAWHO
cnopasymasase, panwugMuMpane, npegHaMepedn Nponycxl, WIRBNEHWA 38 BbBENMIAHE HA 0AMTOpa B
sabnywxaenue, kakTo u npeHebperaane wunu 3200MKANAHE HA BBTPELUHKA KOHTPON,

- nony<asame paibupade 33 BLTPELHWA KOHTPON, WMAEL OTHOWEHWE KuM OOWTa, 33 aa paspaboTum
OAWTOPCKM NpoUBaypW. KOWTO 43 c3 NoAXOARWUM NpW KOHKpeTHWTe OBCTOATENCTBA, HO HE © uen
WIPAIABAHE HA MHEHWE OTHOCHD BeKTHEHOCTTA Ha BLTPEWHWA KouTpan Ha [pysecTeoTo;

~  OUBHABAME YMECTHOCTTA HA WINON3BAHWMTE CUYBTOBOAHW NONWTHEM W PAIYMHOCTTE HA CHETOBOOHMTE
NPABNHUINTENHW CUEHEW M CEBRIAHMTE C TAX ONOBECTABAHWA, HANPABEEHW OT PLHOBOOCTROTD,

-~ OQOCTMFEME 00 33KNIYEHHE OTHOCHO YMECTHOCTTE Ha W3NON3ABEHE OT CTPpaHa Ha DPLYXOBOACTBOTO Ha
cyeToaogHata Baza Ha ocHOBATA Ha NPEeanoNOMEeHUETO 338 ABNCTBAWOD npeanpuaTHe u, Ha Dalata Ha
NONYYEHWTE OAWTOPCKM [AOKA3aTENCTBA, OTHOCHO TOBE AANW € WanWue CLUUECTBEHa HECHIYPHOCT,
OTHACALWE C& 40 CeDWTHA WNK YyCNoBMA, KOUTO Buxa MOrnW ga NoOpoasRT IHAYUTENHN ChMHEHWA OTHOCHO
cnocobrocTTa Ha [lpy®ecTeOTO Aa NPoALMKM 48 DYHKLWOHWPE KaTo AENCTBEIL0 NPEANPURATHE. AKD HUe
AOCTHMHEM A0 I8HMOYEHWE, Y& & HAaNWUE ChLUECTBEHA HECMIYDHOCT, OT HaC CB MIWMCHBEA QA NpUEnedem
BHAMAaHWE B OOMTOPCHMA CW4 JOKNA4 KbM CEBPIAHATE C TE3IW HECHIYRPHOCT ONOBECTABAHWA BB
PMHAHCOBWA OTHET UMW B CNY4YEHA Y& Te3V ONCBECTABAHWA Ca HEAASKRATHW, A3 MOONEUUMPaAME MHEHWETD
CW. HawwTe 3aknoyedds Ce OCHOBABAT Ha OOMTOPCKWTE AOKAIATENCTBA, NONYYeHW OO0 OaTara Ha
OAMTORCKWA HW acknan, Begeww cuButua unw ycnoswa obaue morat aa cranart npwawna pywecteoro
Aa NpeycTadoEd QyHELWOHMPaHETD CU KaTo ASACTEALLD NpeanprATHE,

OUEHABAME UANOCTHOTO NPEACTABARHE, CTRYKTYPA W ChALPMaHHE HA (UHAHCOBWA OTHET, BRNKMWTENHD
ONOBECTARAHWATA, W 42Nk DUHAHCOBMAT OTHET NPEACTABA OCHOBONONArAWNTE 38 HETO CAENKH W ChBnTHA
NO HaYWH, KOWTO NOCTHIA AOCTOBEPHO NPEACTARAHE,

Huwe komyHukwpame c nuuaTa, HaToeapeHy ¢ ofWo ynpaanedie, Hapel ¢ OCTAHANMTE BLNPOCH, NNaHUPaHWA
ofixBat ¥ BPEME HA WINBIHEHWE HA OOMTA ¥ CHUIECTEBEHUTE KOHCTATALWK OT OAWTA, BKNKHATENHD ChUECTEEHW
HENOCTATLUW BhE BLTPEWHWA KOHTROM, KOWTO MABHTWDMLMpaME NO BREME HE NIBLDIWBEHWA OT HAC OOMT.
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[oxnan 8u8 Bpb3Ka C APYrH 3aKOHOBH M PETYNaTOPHH M3WCKBaAHWA

B AombnHeHWe Ha HABWWTE OTTOBOPHOCTH W AOKNaAsaHe CernacHo MOC, onucakM no-rope 8 paigena Jpyra
MHIPOPMBLWA, Pasnnyia O (DUHAHCOBMA OTYET W OOWTOPCKWA goknag BLOXY HEr™ No OTHOWEHWE Ha AoKnana
33 AeHHOCTTA, HUE MIMBNHWXME W NPOLIEAYPHTE, NOGABEHH KbM MIncKkBaHuTe no MOC, ChrnacHoe YxasaHwaTa
Ha NPOCECHOHANNATE OPFEHUIALMA H3 JWNNOMADEHATE EKCNEPT-CHETOBOAMTENN H PETUCTDMPaHTE OAMTOPM
B Bunrapua — MHCTHTYT Ha AMnnomupaddTe exchepr-cvetosoawtenn (MOEC). Teaw npouenyps kacaaT
NPOBEQKM 33 HANKYMETOD, KAKTD ¥ NPOBEPKM HA OPMATE M ChALPKAHWETO HA TE3W APyra WHGOPMAaLIWA ¢ Len
A2 HW NOANOMOTHAT BLE (POPMMPAHE HA CTAHOBMILE OTHOCHO TOBA AanW ApYraTa WHAODMALMA Bxmousa
ONOBECTABAHWATA W AOKNEABAHWATE, NpeasnaeHKk B (Naea cegma ot JakoKa 33 CUETOBOACTROTO, NpUNOoRKUM B
Bunrapun.

Cmanoeuille abe apbana ¢ v, 37, an. 6 om Jaxona 3a cyemoecdcmeomo

Ha Ba2a1a Ha IsLpLUEHUTE NPOUSYPH, HAILETO CTAHOBMLLE 8, Y&:
(a) wHdopmaLmATa, BENICHEHE B AOKNALA 38 ASMHOCTTa 38 (DMHAHCOBATA NOOMMA, 33 KORTD & WAICTEEN
PMHBEHCOBMAT OTHET, CHOTBETCTEA Ha (DMHAHCORKA OTYET,
(6) AoknagLT 3a AERHOCTTE @ WIFOTBEM B CLOTBETCTBWE C NPUNCKHMATE 3AKOHOBM HANCKBEHWA,
{(8) & pesynrar Ha npuaobwToTo nosvanane W paibupave Ha geRHocTTa Ha [pywecTeoTo w cpepara, &
KORTO mﬂmpu. HE CME YCTAHOBWMN CIYHAH HE CHUIBCTRBHO HBBRPHO
38 OBWHOCTTE. o

Mapwi AnocTonoa Hean MNigrickn 2
¥npaeuren Pervcrpupa np-:qs‘cmm
Ipaur TopHToH

Opuropcro apywecTao ¢ per. N 032

27 man 2025 .
Brnrapmn, rp. Codms,
Gyn. YepHn apex Ne26



Tpeig EcTeitc Benrapua EAJ]
DUHAHCOB OTYET
31 gexemapu 2024 r.

OTtyer 3a GPUHAHCOBOTO CHCTORHUE

AxTHaN

HeTexywi akTmem
WHBECTULNOHHK MMOTH
Hetexyiwm akrmen

TeKyL{H aKTHBH
Mpegnnawjanus u Apyri akTuen
Mapk 1 Napu-HK EKBUEANSHTH
Tenyuwm aKTuamn

O6wo akTnen
CobcTeeH KaNWTAN 4 NACHEN

CoBcreen kanuTan
AxuWoHBpEH KANWTEN
[Opyrw pasepau
Hepaznpegenexa nevanta
O6wo cobcTaeH kanwTan

Nacuen

Herexywmu nacwen

HaTerywM 3a8MW OT CBLPIAHK MMUE
OTCpoYEHK BaHEYHK NECHBK
HeTekyuin nacuam

Texyuwn nacuen

KpaTkoCpoHHMK 3a8MH OT CEbp3IaHl Muya
TeKkyLM SAMBMKEHUA KbM CEBDIAHN NWUE
THProBCKM W APYTH 3N LITKEHNS
3agemeeHNR 38 AaHBK BePXy goxona
Texywm nacHem

O6wo nacuen

Ob6uo cobcTeaH KANWTAN M NACHEX

oo, DA

:fﬁ'ocucnaea Xpucmosa/
Lara: 15 anpwn 2025,

C oguropokn goknag o, 27, B M5 -
FpanT TopHToN GDH.W
s

MoACHENRATE CbM GUHENCORMA oT4eT oT 1 A0 25 NPeUTRENAEAT HEDAILENHA YACT OT Hero.

MorcHeHue

8.1
82

16
10

| aexemMBpu b | OexeMapH
2024 2023
XHN. NB. XMN. NB.
83079 g2 190
83 079 892 180
1 5
1859 3 517
1 86O 3522
94 939 95712
52 758 52758
{(1918) (1918)
11 373 g 580
62212 60 519
24 291 252371
207 1712
26 362 27 083
1534 916
4 694 70581
137 128
- 15
6 365 B 110
277 35193
95712







Tpedig Ecteifitc Bunrapus EAJ] 3
DUHAHCOB OTYET
31 gexemepw 2024 r.

OTyer 3a npomeHUTe B COGCTBEHUSA KanuTan

Bouvku cymu ca npedcmaseHu AnuwoHepen [Mpemwen Hepainpegenewa Obuo
8 Xun. ne. KanMTan peieps nevanGa  cobcreex
Kanuran
Cango wum 1 saHyapu 2024 r. 52 158 (1919) 9 680 60 518
DuenpexTtin - - {3913) (3913)
Caenku cee cobcTBeHMUNTE - - (3 913) (3813)
MevanBa 3a roguHara - - 5 806 5 606
O6uwpo Bceobxearen noxon 3a
rooWMHaTa - - 5606 5 606
Cango wem 31 pexemapn 2024 r. 52 758 {1918} 11 373 62212
Bowvnu cymu ca npedcmaeesHu Axumonepen  Mpemwen Hepasnpenenexa OBwo
8 Xun. ne. Kanwran peseps neyanba cobBcreen
Kanuran
Cango xem 1 auyapn 2023 r. 52 758 {1918) 9 630 80 469
OnengeHTH — - - (7 041) (7 041)
Coenwmn cbe cofcrReHMUMTE - - (7 041) {7 041)
MNeuanfa 3a roguHaTa - - 7 081 7081
0O6uio sceobxeaTen foxon 2a
roauHara . . 7091 7091
Cango xum 31 gexemspu 2023 r, 52 758 (1919) 9 6B0 60 519

—L

{Oecucnaaa Xpucmoea/
Aata: 15 anpun 2025 .

C 0AWTOPCKH AOKNEA OT 27. 5. 05
FpaxT TopHTOH DDﬂ np:.rm:mu per.

Mapui Anoctonoe
Ynpasuren

MoAcHeHIAATE Kb GMHAMCOBNA OTYaT 0T 1 A0 25 NPRICTERMNABAT HEPAIGENHE BT OT HEMD,
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OTyer 32 NnapuyHUTE NOTOLM

Mpossana & cnpaesdnueama cmoldHOCM HE UHESCMULULIOHNU

UMOomu
Paaxodu 38 nuxeu
HeTuu npomexu B 0GopoTHURA kanwTan
Mpomara 8 MbpaosckumMe U dpyau a3eManus
MpomaAna 8 mMupaosckume U dpyeu 3a0LmKeHUS
HeTHw npomenk B 0BopoTHUA kanuTan
HeTex napw4eH NOTOK OT ONEPATHEHE OEAHOCT

DHHAHCOBA O8RHOCT

MnalaHkA No NoMyYeHn 3aemm

Mnawaxua Ha NuxBK

MnawaHua Ha QWBMOEHTH

Mnawaxua Ha gpyri MHEHCORK Pasxoau

Herex napnyen noToK oT hHHANCOBE OeRHOCT

HeTHa NPOMAHE B NapM W NAPHYHH EXBHBANEHTH
Mapi ¥ NAPMYHI BXKBUBANEHTH B HANANOTO HA MOQMKETE
MNapw W NApHYHK EXBHEANEHTH B KPEA HA FOAMHATA

4

MoRcHeHue 2024 2023
XWN. N8B,  XWN, NB,

6 289 7913

756 (1208)

(889)  (3004)

1645 17598

2 (840)

4 i

(2) (640)

(360) {188)

6 687 5 901

17 (810) (810)
17 {1279) {2 07T0)
83 (6259) (B BO1)
PR | S 11 4 }
__(83885) (11692)

(1 658) (5791)

a7 9 308

T 1859 3817

Cucrasun __ ?-) “% Mpokypuer ; J

/Mecucnaea Xpucmoaa/

Oarta: 15 anpwn 2025 . : ,.

C ogwropckn aoknag ot 27. 5- ns - J ——

paxT TopuTox OO, nnlu‘npcmwg,

Mapui Anoct
¥n —

L2

MHuxonaoc Midawmuduc/

MOACHEHMHTE Kl (HUMAMCOBKE OTYET OT 1 40 25 NPEACTARNARAT HEPALAANHA SACT OT HEro.
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6. OTtcpoyveHd OaHBLYHW BKTUBW W NACHBM

OTCpoMEHWTE JaHbUW BL3HWKBET B PE3YNTAT HA BPEMEHHM DPa3NWKW W MOraT Aa ObAaT NpeaCcTABEHM
KaTo cnegea;

OTcpoveHn OaHBYHKU NACHBKW 1 Anyapw MNpu3anatu B 31 pekemBpw
2024 r. nevanbara unu 2024 r.
aarybara
xun. ne, xun, ne. xun. ne.
HeTekyuwm aKTHEM
WHBECTULMOHHWA MMOTH 1712 358 2071
172 359 2071
OTcpoyeH A3HEYHW NSCUBM 1712 2071
Mpuanatu kato:
HeTHo oTCpOYEHW OaHBYHU NacHBN 1712 2071

OTCpOMEHUTE fanbUy 38 CpasHUTenHUA nepioga 2023 r. morar ga Guaar o6obweHun, kakTo cnegea:

OTcpoveHd 0aHbYHW NacHBem 1 Anyapm MNpuznatn B 31 pekemBpy
2023 r. neuvanBarta unu 2023 r.
aarybara

XN, nB. ®un. ne. XU, NB.

HetekywmM akTuen
WHBECTHUMOHHN MMOTH 1142 570 1712
_ 1142 570 1712
OTcpoyeHin aHb4HK Nacuan 1142 1712

Mpuanaty kato:

HeTHo oTcpoveHM JanbYHKW NacHEM 1142 1712

7. TMapw W NapWYHK EKBMBANEHTM
MapuTe 1 NApUIHWUTE EKBMBANEHTH BKNIOYBAT CNEAHUTE ENEMEHTH

2024 2023
xun. ne. Xun. ne.

Mapuunu cpegcrea B Gankw v B Gpod &
- Gwnrapckw nesa 1728 3 467
- e8po - 131 50
Mapu U NApUYHK EKBUMBANEHTH 1859 3 517

OpywecTeOTO & WIBLPWWND OUSHKE H3 OYAKBAHWTE KPEAMTHW 3aryBW ELpxy NapuyHW CPeAcTEa W
napuduHu exsusanesTu. OueHexata cTo@HocT @ B paamep noa 0.1% or GpyTeata cCTORHOCT Ha
NapuyHKTE CPeACTEa, GEN03UpaHW BB IWHAHCORW WHCTUTYUWW, NOpagW KOETO & onpedeneHa kato
HECLLIECTBEHE M HE 8 HayucneHa BbB UHaHcoBUTE oTveTH Ha [pywecTaoTo.

8. CobcreeH Kanuran
8.1. AWuWOHEPEH KanuTan

PervcTpupaHuaT Kanutan Ha [pywecTeoTo ce ceeTou oT 52,758,203 Ha Gpod 0DUKHOBEHW BKLWK C
HOMWHENHE CTOWHOCT B pasMep Ha 1 ne, 33 akumA. Bouukw kUMW ca C NPaB0 Ha nonyYaeaHe Ha
AMBMAOESHT W nukenaauwoned aan. ot 2021 r. egHonuded akywoxep e Tpeig Ectedtc AkywoHepHo
Dpy=ecTeo 3a MueecTuyuu B Hegauwwumo Umywecreo’ C.A., Mepuwns.

8.2.  [Opyru peaepau

Opyrute pesepaw B paamep Ha (Muxyc) 1 919 xun. ne. npeacTaenaeart peaepe o7 npe-crﬁpaayflaﬂa.
BEIHWKHAN NpM yYPEeaRBaHETO Ha ApywecTeoTo npes 2019 r., KaTo pasnuka MEMIY HETHATA CTOMHOCT
Ha anopTWpaHoTo WMmywecTeo B pasmep Ha S50 B39 xwn. ne. (cnpaeegnueaTa CTOMHOCT Ha
HEOBMMUMWTE UMOTW B pasMep Ha 86 044 xun, ne. 1 GaHkoBWTE 3adbmKeHNs B paamep Ha 35 205 xun.
NB.) ¥ CTORHOCTTE Ha 3aNUCaHWA aKLWoHEpeH kanuTan & ot 52 758 xun. ne.
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B.3.  [OuenaeHTH

Mpes 2024 r. Qpy»ecTBOTO € pasnpegenuno Ha eQHONWHYHWA CW CODCTBEHWK QUBMOEHTH B pasMep Ha
2 000 xun. espo wnk 3 913 xun. ne. (2023 r.: 3 600 xun. eepo unw 7 041 xun. ne.).

WannaTtenuTe npea nepwoda gvewaeHT ca B pamep Ha 3 200 xun. espo wnu 6 258 xun. ne. (2023 r.:
4 500 xwn, eepo wnu 8 801 xun. ne.)

He ce Abnwu AaHsk BepXy AMBUASHTUTE 38 YyWASCTPaHHM IOpUAWYeck  nuya ot EC.

9. Mony4exu 3aeMKu OT CELpP3aHK NKUa

Mpes 2022 r. [pywecTeoTo CHNQYBa AOrOBOP 38 33eM C egHONWYHuUA cv coboTeenuk Tpeng Ectentc
AxuymonepHo dpyxectso 3a MHeecTuuMn 8 Hepsuwumo Mmywecteo” C A, Mepuwa 3a cymara ot 13 800
xun. espo (26 990 xun. na.). LlenTa Ha 3aema e Aa ce peduHaHcupa cuHankupanua Gankoa aaem ¢
YuuKpegur BynBank All, Banka ACK EAQ w KOpoBauk Bunrapua ALl CpoksT Ha 3aema e 3a ocem
roguHn o 10 wxu 2029 r., KETO NOracABaHeTo We CEe W3BLPLWBE HA NoOMLUHW BHOCKM ChINAcHo
noracuTensd nnad. JluxeeHnAa NPoOUEHT & npegoroBoped npes sHyapw 2024 r. w ce cectou ot M
EURIBOR c 2.5% nanbaexa. 3aemuT He e obeaneueH.

3afbnNMeHUATa No 33eMUTE BRNIOYBAT cnegHuTe dUHaHCOBKM nacvan:

Texyum __ Herexywmw
2024 2023 2024 2023
XUN. NB.  XUN. NB. Xun. ne. xun. ne.
@DUHSHCOBW NACKBYW, OLUEHABSHW NO
SMOPTUIUPAEHAE CTORHOLT:
3aem oT CELp3aHK NWUUa 1080 810 24 291 25311
Hawucnexa nuxea no 3aem 454 e - -
O6wo GanaHcosa CTOWHOCT 1534 916 24 291 25371

banaHcoBaTa CTORHOCT Ha 3aemMa Ce NpuemMa 3a pasymHa npubnuanTenya oueHka Ha cnpaeegnveaTa
M CTORHOCT.

10. TLProBcKM W APYrH 3a0bMKEHWS

2024 2023

Xun. nB. XM, ne.

Teproacky 3agbnxeHus 5 3
O0C 3a sHacaHe 121 115
Hpyrv 3agumeeHun B 11 10
TekylWH THPrOBCKW M APYIW 3a0LNKEHWA 137 128

Hetsata GanaHcoea CTOWHOCT Ha TeKywWMTe ThProBCKW W ApYrM 3a4bMMEHWA Ce NpUema 3a pasymHa
NpMBNU3KMTENHa OUEHKa Ha CNpaBeqnweaTa MM CTORHOCT

11. Apyru npuxoam

Opyrute npuxonw Ha Jpyxecteoto B paavep Ha 387 xun. ne. (2023 r.. 387 xun. nB.) npefcTaanABaT
npedakTypupaHu Ha TpuMeceyue Takca BUTOBKM OTNaABUKN B CLOTEETCTEME C NOroBOpa 3a HaeM ¢ Xayc
Maprer Benrapus EAL
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12. OnepaTHBHKW PaixoamM

2024 2023
XHn. nB. xun. ne.
Takca BuToaM OTNaObLUW (387) (387)
Davsk crpagu (173) (173)
PaaxoawW 33 BbHLWHW YCNyrd (56) (59}
WmylwecTBeHW 3acTpaxoBKku (7) (B)
Dpyrw paaxoau (1) -
(624) {625)

13. ®uHaHCcOBK paixoau
2024 2023
Xun. nae. Xun, NB,
Paaxoaw 3a nuxau {1 627) (1 787)
Bakkoewm Takcw (18) (11)
{1 645) {1 798)

14. Pasxoaw 32 AaHbK BLPXY goxoaa

OuakeaHUTE pasxoaM 3a AaHbuwn, Gasupadi Ha NPUNoXWMaTa Aarb4Ha cTaexa 3a Benrapua B pasmep
Ha 10 % (2023 r. 10 %), ¥ QeRCTBMTENHO NPU3HATUTE AaHL4HW paaxogu B nesanbarta unu 3arybata
morat Aa Gugar paeHeHu, KakTo cneaea

2024 2023

XWn. na. xun. ne.

MevanBa npegw naHs4HO oBnaraqe B 299 7913

DOawtuHa cTaska 10% 10%

OuaKBaH pasxof 38 AaHbK BupXy Aoxoga (623) (791)
NaHwyeH edekT oT.

Hamanernus Ha MHAHCOBWA PEIYNTAT 338 QaHBYHW Ueny ase 570
DOpyrv kopexymi (70) (31)
Texyu, pasxog 3a AaHbK BLPXY Aoxona (334) (252)
OTcpoueHi AaHBYHN pasxogu!

BrasukaaHe u oBpaTHo NPOABNEHWE HA BPEMEHHW PasNUKW (358) (570)
Pazxonu 3a AaHbK BLpXY goxoaa (693) {822)

MoscHenwe 6 npegocTasa WHGOPMAUWA 338 OTCPOYEHWTE AaHBHHW aKTWBM W Nacved, BrHBaWa
CTOWHOCTUTE, NPU3HaTH AWPEKTHO B ApyrvA Bceobxeated 4oxon.
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Ounrocpoynn  KpaTKocpouHM O6wo
3aeMM JaeMHM
XMN. N\, Xun. ne, Xun. ne.
1 AHyapw 2023 r. 26 181 1199 27 380
Napuunu noToum:

Mnawaxe Ha rMaeHuUa - (810) (810)

MnawaHe Ha nuxea - {2 070) (2 070)
Henapuunu npomenn:

HauncnasaHe Ha nuxea - 1787 1787

Mpexnacuduyupare - (810) B10 R

31 pexkemepn 2023 r. 25 3T 916 26 287

18. BeaHaANKYHMK cOenkKu

MNpes npeacTaseHuTe OTYETHW NepuoAd [pyXecTEOTO He & OCLLIECTEMND MHBECTULUWOHHW M
PMHaHCOBW COBNKW, NPW KOWTD HE C3 M3NON3BaHK NapPW UMK NaPUYHK BKBUBANEHTH

19. YCnoBHM aKTUBM W YCNOBHW NacHeu
MNpes roguHaTa HAME NPEARBEHU Pa3NWYHK rapaHLUMOHHK U NPaBHK NCKoBE KbM [py*ecTsoTo

20. Kateropumu hMHAHCOBM AKTHEM W NacHBM

GanaHcoeMTe CTOWHOCTH HAa MHEHCOBMTE aKTWEM W nacuew Ha [pyxecTteoto morat ga Gvpar
npefcTaseH B CNeqHUTE KAaTEroOpMu:

DUHAHCOBM aKTUBH MoAcHeHWe 2024 2023
XWn. na. Xun. ne.

Lunrosw MHCTPYMEHTH N0 aMOPTUIMPEHS CTOWHOCT,

Mapi i NapMYHK EXBUBENEHTY T 1 858 3 817
1858 3517
©UHAHCOBMW NAacHBK NoacHeHue 2024 2023

Xun, n\e. xun. na.

OUHAHCOBU NACHBKM, OTYMTAHW N0 AMOPTUIUPSHE

CTOMHOCT
Mony4eHn 3aemy OT CBLP3aHW NMUa g 25825 26 287
THProBokk 3adbnHeHlA 10 5 3
3anenMeEHWA KbM CEbP3aHK nuya (Ges asaHck) 16 4 694 7 051

30524 3334

Buxre noscHedwe 4.8 3a wHbopMauws OTHOCHO CHETOBOGHETa NONWTHKE 38 BCAKA KaTeropua
WHEHCOBW WHCTPYMeHTW. OnucanHue Ha NONUTUKETE W UenuTe 3a ynpaeneHwe Ha pucka Ha
JpyxecTeoTo OTHOCHO OMHAHCOBWMTE MHCTPYMEHTW B NPEACTaBEHO B NOACHEHWE 21

21. PuckoBe, cBLP3aHM ¢ (PUHAHCOBHTE MHCTPYMEHTH
Uenw w nonWTHKa Ha pPLKOBOACTEOTO NO OTHOWEHHWE YNPAaBNEHWE Ha pHCKa

OpyXecTeoTo & WINOMEHD Ha PaINU4YHW BUAOBE DWCKOBE NO OTHOWEHME HE (IWHEHCOBWMTE CW
WHCTPYMEHTH, 3a nobede WHPOPMBUWA OTHOCHO HWHAHCOBWMTE AKTMBM WM NAcWBW NO KaTeropww Ha
OpysectBoTo BuMTE noscHedue 20. Hal-3HauvumuTe HUHAEHCOBA DWUCKOBE, HA KOWTO & WanoMeHo
OpywecTeoTo ca nalapeH PUCK, KpeauTeH PUCK W NUKBHOEH PUCK.

YnpasneHweTo Ha puMcka Ha [pywecTeoTo Ce OCLWECTERBA O7 UeHTpanHata agMHWHWCTRauWA Ha
NpyxectaoTo B CeTPyAHW4ecTBO cbe CuBETa Ha gwpexTopute. MpUOPUTET Ha PLKOBOACTBOTO € 4a
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OCUrYPU KPATKOCPOUHUTE W CPEAHO CPOMHM NapUYHK NOTOLMW, KaTO HaManu WanaraHeTo cu Ha
hMHaHCOoBM Nasapw.

Hai-cuujecTeeHuTe UHIHCOBM PUCKOBE, HA KOWTD € WanoxeHo [pyXecTsoTo, Ca ONWCaHK No-4ony.
21.1. AHanui Ha NasapHWA PUCK

Beneactere Ha wanonIBaHeTo Ha UHAHCOBW MHCTPYMEHTW [lpYMEecTBOTO & M3NOXEeHD Ha nasaped
PHCK M NO-KOHKPETHO Ha PUCK OT NPOMEHK BLE BANYTHUA KyYPC, NUXBEH PUCK, KSKTO W PUCK OT NpOMAHaTa
Ha KOHKPETHW LBHW, KDBTD C& LMWK H3 ONEPaTUBHETA W WHBECTULWOHHATA AerHOCT Ha [pywecTeoTo.

21.1.1. BanyTteH puck

Mo-ronAMaTta YacT oT caenkuTe Ha [lpywecTeoTo ce ocblecTeseaT @ Gbnrapckk Nesa W espo.
Opy#ecTsoTo He & WANOKEHD HA BanNyTEH PUCK NPW Npogaxtu, NoKYNKW M 3aeMHM CPEACTBa, 3aljoTo
TEé He ca AeHOMWHWpaHW BbEB BanyTa, pasnuuyHa oT espo W Gunrapckw nes. BLNTapCKMAT NEB & ©
dukcHpaH Kypc Kem espoTo ot 1.85583 nesa 3a 1 espo.

21.1.2. NuxeeH puck

Monutukata Ha [pywecTeoTo e HacoYeHa KoM MUHWMUIMDaHE HE NUXBEHWA PUCK NPW ABNrOCpOYHD
duHarcupade. Kem 31 aekemapu 2024 r. [Ipy®ecTaoTo & MINOKEHD Ha PHUCK OT NPOMAHE Ha NalapHWTe
NUXBEHK NPOLEHTH NO 338Ma OT 8OHONWYHWA COBCTBEHWK, KOWTO Ca C NPOMEHNWME NWUXBEH NPOUEHT.
Bcuukm apyru MHaHCOBM aKkTHBK W Nacuemn Ha [lpyKecTROTO Ca ¢ IMKCHDaHW NUXBEHK NPOUBHTHM.

MNpegcrasenuTe no-gony TaBnuuw NOKESBAT YYBCTBUTENHOCTTA Ha FOOWUHWA HeTeH duHawcos
pesynTaT cneg AaHbUW W Ha cOGCTEEHWS KANWTaN KuM BEDOATHE NPOMAHAE HA NUXBEHWTE NPOLEHTW NO
3JE@EMMTE ¢ NNaBaw nuxeeH npoueHT, Gaavpad Ha 3-meceved EURIBOR, & paamep Ha +/- 0.37%
(2023 r.: +/- 0.53%). Teaw npoMeHn ce ONpenendaT KaTo BEPOATHM B3 OCHOBa Ha HabnwgeHws Ha
HACTORLLWTE NazapHuTe YCNOBHA. WMauncnedwaTa ce EBJHPET Ha NpOMAHaTa Ha CpeHUR na3lapeH
NUXBEH NPOUBHT W HA DWHEHCOBWTE WHCTPYMEHTH, AbpHadu oT JpyecTeoTo KbM Kpas Ha OTYETHUA
nepuof, KoUTo Ca YYBCTEWTENHW CNPAMO NPOMEHW Ha NUXBEHWA NPoUEHT. Bouukk apyry napameTtpu ca
NPUETH 33 KOHCTaHTHM.

31 pexemapwn 2024 r. Heven pwHaHcoB peaynrar CobcTEeH kanuTan
YBENWYEHHE HaManeHWe Ha yBENWYEHWE HaManeHwe Ha
Ha NWXBEHKUA NWXBEHUA Ha NUXBEHWA NUXBEHWR
NPOLEHT npoueHT NpoueHT npoueHT
3aem (3M EURIBOR +/-0.37%) (84) B84 (84) 84
31 pekemepn 2023 . Heten thwHancoB peaynrar CobcTaeHd kKanuran
yBEnH4YeHHe HaManeHwe Ha yBenuYyeHwe HaMmaneHwe Ha
Ha NUXBEHHA NUXBEHWA Ha NUXBEHWA NUXBEHWA
npouexT npoueHT npoueHT npouexT
3aem (3M EURIBOR +/-0.53%) (123) 125 (125) 125

21.2.  AHanWi Ha KPeaMTHMA PHCK

KpeawTHWAT pUCK NPEOCTaBNABE PUCKLT OaAeH KOHTPareHT 48 HE 3annaTi 3afb/MMEHMETO CH KbM
Opywecraoto. [pywecTsoTo e WInomeHa Ha TOIM PUCK BLE BPL3KAE © PasnUYHW UHIHCOBMW
WHCTRPYMEHTH, KaTo Hanp. NpW B3eMaHWA OT KNMEHTW W AencaupaHe Ha cpeactea. Wanaraxeto Ha
OpywecTeoTo Ha KpeaWTeH DWUCK € OfpaHWYeHo A0 pasMepa Ha GanaWcosara CTOMHOCT Ha
thMHAHCOBWUTE BKTUBM, NPWIHATW B KPAR Ha OTYETHWA NEPUOJ, KAKTO & NOCOMEHO No-A0ny:

2024 2023
Xun. ne. Xun. ne.

Mpynw oMHaHCOBM 8KTUBW — DanaHcoBW CTOAHOCTI
Mapw ¥ NapWYHY EKBUBANEHTH 18589 3817
Banancosa cToWHocT 1889 3517

[pywecTeoTo PeAoBHO CNEaW 38 HEMINLNHEHWETO HA 3aALMKEHWATA HA CBOW KMUEHTW W APy
KOMTPAreHTH, YCTAHOBEHW UHAWBWAYANHO UMK HA rPYNK, W MIN0N3Ba TAIW UHCDOPMAELMA 3a KOHTPON Ha
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kpenuTHUA puck. NonuTika Ha [JpyHecTBoTo e 43 M3BLPLUBA TPaHIZKUWMM CaMO C KOHTPareHTy ¢ goBep
KpeauTeH pelTHHr. PoroBoacTBoTo Ha [IpyMEecTBOTO CUWTA, Ye BCHMKK TOPECNOMEHATH DWHEHCOBM
aKTuaM, KOWTO He Ca EHHH GEEGL[E‘H-HBEHH HNW €3 C HaCTeNUN nafex npe3 NpeacTaBeHWTE OTYHETHM
NepwoaW. ¢a MHaHCoBK aKTUBMW C BUCOKE KDEOWTHA OLEeHKE.

Opy*ecTeOTO He & NPEOCTABAN0 UMHAHCOBUTE CW 3KTUBM KaTo obeaneueHue No Apyru CASNKW.
Kum aarara Ha thvHaHCOBWA OTHET HAMA ThProBCKW ¥ APYTW B3EMaHWA Ca C M3TEKBLN CPOK Ha nnalwaxe.

Mo oTHoWweHWe HA THPTrOBCKATE W OPyrd B3eMaHWA [pywecTBOTO HE & WINOMEHD Ha 3HaYMTEnEH
KpeauTeH PUCK KbM HUTO 80WH OTASNEH KOHTPAreHT WNK KbM MpYNa oT KOHTPareHTH, KOWTO MMaT CXOQHW
XapakTepucTuEn. T‘I:prDBl.‘.I{HTE BIEMAHWA CE CLCTOAT OT HEEMaTENA Ha KHBECTUUWOHHWTE WMOTHK, Kayc
Mapker Brwnrapwa EA[l. cevpaaHo nuue, 4act ot rpynata Ha dypnuc Xongwer CA., Mspuws. do
MOMEHTA He & UMano cny4Yal Ha Hennawaxe.

KpeauTHHAT pPWCK OTHOCHO Mapd W Napu€Hd  SKBUBaneHTH, CPEeacTea Ha napudHWA  nasap,
HeobeaneveHu obnurayww U gepuBaTMBHW DUHAHCOBU MHCTPYMEHTW CB CHWTE 33 HECBLUSCTBEH, ThA
K2TO KOHTparedTuTe ca Dankn c gobpa penyTaywna  BUCOKE BBHILHA OLUEHKE Ha KPEOWTHUA DEARTWHT.

3aryba ot 0be3uerka He & NPU3HaBAHA N0 OTHOLIEHWE Ha NapW W Napuw4HW ekBUBaneHTH. banancosuTe
CTOAHOCTH ONWCaHK NO-rope, NPeacTaBNABaT MaKCHMAanHO BeIMOMHOTO WaNaraHe Ha KpeiWTeH puck
Ha [lpyecTBoTo NO OTHOLUEHWE Ha Tean (DUHAHCOBK WHCTPYMEHTI

[pywecTeoTo npunara onpoctedus mogen Ha MC@O 9 3a npusxasaHe Ha OHaKBaHWTE HPEOWTHW
3aryGu 33 UenWsR CPoK Ha BKTMBA 33 BCWYKW THProBCKW B3IEMaHWA, Thi KaTO Té HAMAET ChllecTaeH
GMHAHCOR KOMMNOHEHT.

21.3. AHANM3 Ha NUKBWOHUA PUCK

NUKBUOHUAT pUCK NPEACTARNRER PUCKET [pyMecTBOTO Od He MOME 03 NOorack CEOWTE 33blMeHns,
OpyxecTeoTo NOCpeLWa HYMOMTE CW OT NWKBWOHW CPeACTEA, KATO BHWMAaTENHo CNeau NNalladnAaTa no
NOTECHTENHMTE NNAHOBE Ha ALNrOCPOYHUTE (DMHEHCOBK 33aBMMEHWA, KAKTO W BXOAALLMTE W HIXOORLUM
NapuuHiK NOTOUM, BBIHWKBALUW B X008 Ha ONepaTHBHaTa AeWHOCT. HywauTe oT NUKBUAHW CPecTea ce
CNegAT 33 pasnuyHy BpeMesd nepuogu. Hymu,u're OT NHKEWAHW CpeacTEa B AbLNrocpoded nnad - aa
nepuoaw ot 180 1 360 gHuW, ce onpeaenaT MeceYyHo. HywauTe OT NapuYHK CpeacTaa ce CpaBHABAaT Che
3AEMWTE Ha pasnonoxedwe, 3a Aa ObAaT yCTaHoBEHM WANUWLUM Nk aeduuuTy. Tosu aHanua
ONpefens O&anW 38eMWTE Ha pa3nONoMEHWE We ca OOCTaTbYHKM, 33 03 NOKPUAT HYMOMTE Ha
OpyxecTeoTo 3a nepuoga.

Opy#ecTeoTo Abpwy napw B Gpoi, 33 Oa NOCPELWS NWEBWAHWTE CW Hy®AW 338 nepwoan go 30 adw.
CpefcTea 33 ALNrOCPOMHUTE NUKBWAHK HYWOW CE8 OCUMYPABAET YPE3 3a8MW B ChOTBETHWA paMep.

KoM 31 aexkemspu 2024 r. nagewuTe Ha AOrOBOPHUTE 3agbnweduA Ha [pysecTeoTo (ChabpHalum
MWXBEHW NNAWAHKA, KLAETO & npunoxumo) ca obobweru, kakTo cneasa:

Tekywm Hetekywm

31 pexemapw 2024 r. Oo 6 meceua Memay 6 M Or1pos Haa 5
12 meceua rOANHK roAnHW

XWn. na. Xun. ne. XHMn. n\. Xun. ne.

MonyueHn 33eMi OT CBLP3IEHA NKUa 454 1080 5128 19 163
THProBCkid ¥ APYrv 3aQbIKeHUA 5 - - -
AanunxeHuA KuM CBLP3aHN NWUa - 4 694 - -
Obuo 459 5774 5128 19 163

B npeaxogHHs OTHETEH NEPUOA NaAewWTe Ha AOrOBOPHWTE 3agbiwenws Ha [pywectsoto ca
0BoBLUEHM, KAKTO Cneasa:

Tekylm Hetexyuwm
31 pexemBpw 2023 1. Do 6 meceua Memay 6 u Or1n05 Hag 5
12 meceia FOMHLW roOAMHW
XWn, nae. ®un. ne. Xun, ne. XM, NA.
MonydYexn 3aeMu OT CEbP3aH nuUa 106 810 4 B58 20 513
ToproBoky U APYTY 380 bMKEHWUA 3 - - -
JaguweHWA KeM CELP3aHK NUua - 7 051 -

Obwo 109 7 B61 4 858 20 513
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©uHaHcos oTYer
31 pexemepun 2024 r,

HayanHoTo canqo Ha HedWHaHCOBWTE SKTUBKM Ha HUBOD 3 mowe Aa Onfe paBHEHD C KDARHOTO UM Canao
KbM OTYETHATA 0aTa, KaKTO cneasa.

2024 2023

XU, N8, XMN. NB.

Banancora cToOMHOCT KbM 1 AHYyapu 92180 B9 1B6
Hetha nevanBa oT npoMAHa Ha cnpasegnueata cToAHOCT 8BS 3004

BanaHcoBa cTOWHOCT KbM 31 fexeMBpM = 93079 92190

23. NonuTuka U NpoUeaypH 3a yNpaBneHWe Ha Kkanurana

LenuTe Ha [ipyxecTeoTo BLE BPbL3IKA C YyNPSBNEHWE HE KanWTana ca
* Aa ocurypu cnocobBHocTTa Ha [lpyRecTBOTo Aa NpoAbN%W A3 ChUecTByBa kaTo AedcTeawo
npeanpusTHE, W
s [Oa OCcWrypW agewsatha pedTabunHocT 3a coOCTBEHWMUWTE, KaTo ONpegens LUeHata Ha
NPOAYKTWTE W YCNYIWTE CW B CLOTBETCTEWE C HWBOTO HA pHUCka,
* [3 CEe WINLMHAT WAWCKBAHWATE, HANOWEHW OT TDETW CTPAHK Ha NPeanpPUATUETO BbE BDBb3KA C

dvHaHCHpaTe OT TPeTH CTRPaHW WNM NULEH3WOHHE gedHocT (DaHkd, npuTexartend Ha
obnurauvoxepu u gp.).

Apywecteoro vabmogapa kanuTana Ha Ba3aTa Ha ChOTHOLLIEHWETO HA KOPUTMPEHWA KANWTAN KbM
HETHWR ObNT.

OpyxecTeoTo onpegens KOpMripaHny KanwTan Ha ocHoBaTta Ha fanancosara cToOWHOCT Ha cobeTeEHKA
kanuTan u cybopaWHWpanA OLNr, NpeacTaseHdi B OTHETE 338 (DUHAHCOBOTOD CLCTOAHUE

CyGopanMHUpanvaT Abnr BknoYea HeobeaneveHUTE 3aeMU OT NPEANPUATHETD Maika.

HeTHWAT OLNr BKNOYB3 CYMaTa Ha BCWYKA TLRTOBCKK W ADYTH 3a0bMMeHunA, Hamanexa c Banadvcoeara
CTORHOCT Ha NapuTe W NapWYHWTE EKBUBANEHTH.

KanutansT 3a npegcTaBeHuTE OTHETHW NEpUoaW Moxe fa Gbae aHanuanpas, KakTo cneaea:

2024 2023
XHN. NB8. xun. ne.

CoficTaed kanitan 62 212 60 519
+CyGopaviupan awnr 25 825 26 287
KopWrupaHx kanwran BB 037 86 806
OBLWo 3afbN¥EHUA 4831 7194
- Mapk ¥ NapUyHK EKBUBANEHTH {1 85%9) (3 517)
Heten awnr 2972 3677
CLOTHOLWEHWE HA KOPUIMPaH KanuTan KeM HETEH QBT 1:0.03 1:0.04

24. CubuTWA cnea Kpas Ha OTYeTHWA Nepuoa

He ca Bb3HWKHANK KOPUrMpaLUM CEEUTHA WNK IHSYUTENHW HEKOPUIMPaLLKW ChEMTHA Mexay AaTaTa Ha
l:hHHaHf.‘.ﬂBHFI OTYeT U AaTaTa Ha OTOPM3IUpaHeTo My 33 W3faBaHe, C W3KNKDYeHWe Ha CNegHoTo
HEKopWrupawo cubuTie

Cneg wiassplueHa xakepcka ataka cpewy T cuctemute Ha Fourlis Group 8 kpar #a 2024 r., npoyecsT
H3 BbL3ICTAHOBABAHE HA CUCTEMWTE Ha rpynata, 8 T.4. Ha [IpywecTBOTO CTapTHPa aKTWBHO NPEe3 AHYapw
2025 r. w npoabrixasa go despyapy 2025 r. B xoa ca Npogbnuasau AEHHOCTW, HACOYEHU KM
NOBMLLISBAHE Ha HWBaTa HE 3alMTa W No-HagexaHoTo obesnevasane Ha NPoLIecUTe

25. Ogobpexne Ha hHHAHCOBMA OTYHET

DUHAHCOBUAT OTYET KeMm 31 gexkemBpu 2024 r. (BRNIOYMTENHO CPaBHWTENHATa MHOpMaUWA) & onobpeH
ot CheeTa Ha aupestopuTe Ha 15 anpun 2025 .



